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NCTICE is hereby given that the Thirty Fifth Annual General Meeting of the members of Yuken India
Limited will be held at Hote! Woodlands (P) Limited, Raja Ram Mohan Roy Road, Bangalore-560025
on 2nd September 2011 at 10.00 am to transact the following business: ‘

A. ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Toconsider and adopt the audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2011, the Profit and Loss Account
forthe year ended on that date and the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. Todeclare a dividend on equity shares.

3. Toappoint a Director in place of Dr.Prémchander, who retires by rotation, but being eligible, offers\

him self for re-appointment.
4. Toappoint Mr.Yasuhiro Mukaide as Director in place of Mr.Yasuc Sakakibara,

5. Toappoint Auditors and to fix their remuneration.

"RESOLVED that M/s Deloitte Haskins & Sells, Chartered Accountants, (Registration N0.008072S)
the refiring auditors be and is hereby re-appointed as Auditors of the Company, to hold office from
the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of next Annual General Meeting
ofthe Company@on such remuneration as shall be fixed by the Board of Directors."

B. SPECIAL BUSINESS

6. Toconsider and if thoughtfit, to pass with (or) without modifications the following Resolutions as an
- ORDINARY RESOLUTION -

RESOLVED that Mr Osamu Tanaka be and is hereby appomted as a Director of the Company,
whose office is not liable to retire by rotaiion.

REGISTERED OFFICE : By order of the Board
PB 16, Whitefield Road .
Whitefield - e '

Bangalore 560066 . . . . ~ . C P Rangachar

Managing Director.

Place: Bangalore
Date: 14.05.2011
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A member entltled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appomt a proxyto attend and vote
on poll instead of himself / herself and such proxy need not bea member of the company.

The Instrument appointing proxy in order to be effective should be lodged atthe Registered Office of
the Company not laterthan 48 hours before the t:me fixed forthe meetmg

The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remam c[osed from 29/
08/2011 to 02/09/2011 (both days inclusive) for determining the names of members eligible for divi-
dend on equity shares, if declared at the meeting.

Shareholders seeking any information with regard to accounts are requested to write to the Com-
pany at least 15 days in advance from the date fixed for the Annual General Meeting.to enable the
Management to keep the information ready.

Members are requested to intimate to the Company any changes, if any, in thelr reglstered ad-
“dresses at an earty date _ :

"An Explanatory Statement pursuant to section 173(2) of the Companies Act, 1956, relating to the
Special Business to be transacted at the Meeting is annexed hereto.

Members are requested to bring their attendance siip afong with their copy of Annua_l Report to the
Meeting.

Members holding shares in electronic form may note that bank particulars registered against their
respective depository accounts will be used by the Company for payment of dividend through ECS.
Incase of any change in the bank particulars, kindly contact the respective depository accounts for
effecting the changes.

Under section 205A of the Companies Act, 1958, the amount of dividend remaining unpaid or un-
claimed for a period of seven years from the date of payment is required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund of the Central Government and under Section 205-C of the
Companies Act, 1956, no claim shall lie against the company or the said Fund, in respect of Indi-
vidual amount/s which remained unclaimed or unpaid for a period of seven years from the date of
payment, and no payment shall be made in respect of any such claims.

10. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice are open for inspection by the members

atthe Begistered Office of the Company on all working days between 11.00 am and 1.00 pm upto
the date of the meeting.
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Details of Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM. _
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 173 (2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 1955, IN
RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS SET QUT IN THE NOTICE.

ITEMNO:5 e B ‘ _
The Company has received separate Notice u/s 257(1) of the Companies Act 1956 in writing from a member
proposing the candidature of Mr Osamu Tanaka for appointment to the office of Director not liable to retire by
rotation, along with requisite deposit of Rs 500/- .

Details of Directors seeking appointment /re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM.

Particulars Dr.Premchander ' Mr Osamu Tanaka

Date of Birth . " 16th February 1954 3rd June 1946

Date of appointment / ' . N '

re-appointment . ‘ From the date of AGM From the date of AGM

Qualifications Post Graduate in MSc Chemistry Bachelor's degree of Accounting from
: from Delhi University and Fellow, the department of commercial

indian Institute of Management (iIMB), | science of Chuo University
Ahmedabad, PhD-Finance and control.

Expertise Work experience includes State Bank | Joined Yuken Kogyo Co., Lid in 1982,
of India as Officer Commercial and Worked as Director from 1983 to
Industrial Advances, Reliance 1986 in Yuken Kogyo Co.

Consultancy (P} Limited, involving in | Brasil. Finance Manger of Nihon
| Organizational Development, Shrishma | Cylinder from 1986 to 1988,
Fine Chemicals & Pharmaceuticals Manager Production from

Limited, in setting up Management 1988 to 1992, General Manager -
Systems and building the organization | Finance from 1996 to 1999,

for growth. in IIMB as Associate Director, West sales Department .
Professor -Finance & Control, from 1999 to 2007, Executive Director
designed & conducted courses on from 2007 to 2009 , Senior Managing
1) Mergers and Acquisitions Director from 2009 to till date.

2} Business Ethics 3) Finance for
Business Executives 4) Strategic Cost
Management. Also developed long
term duration in Company courses
after diagnosing the requiréments of
the Organization. His continuance as
Independent Director will benefit the
Company to a larger interest,

Directorships held in Director: Webtech Services (P) Limited. | NIL
other public Companies '

Membership / Chairman| NIL - ' Chairman, Yuken Korea Co., Lid -
ship of committees of from March'2010 to tifl date. Chair
cther public Companies man - Yuken Kogyo (Shanghai) Co.,

Ltd from Mar'2010 to till date. Chair
man - Yuken Kogyo (HK) Ltd.,
from April'2010 to tili date.

No of shares held in NIL NIL
the Company
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Board of Directors are pleased to present the 35th Annual Report and the Audited Accounts for
the Financial Year ended 31st March 2011,

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Financial performance of the Company, for the year ended 31st March 2011 is summarized below.

(Rs in Lakhs )
2010-11 2009-10

Particulars

Total ncome 15,084 11,632
Total Expenditure ‘ 13,115 10,064
Profit before Interest, Denréciation & Tax _ 1,969 1,568
Interest - 251 279
Dep.reciata?on - 252 252

Profit Before Tax ‘
Provision for Taxation{Net of deferred tax) ' 486 343

Profit After Tax _ : . 980 693
Balance in profit and Loss Account 2,658 2,122
Amount available for appropriation : 3,638 2,815
Appropriations:

General Reserve o - 100 70
Proposed Dividend S 75 75
Tax on Proposed Dividend : 12 12
Balance Carried to Balance Sheet 3,451 2,658
Total ' - 3,638 2,815

REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, the Company achieved a turn over of Rs 15,084 Lakhs compared to Rs
11,632 Lakhs in 2010. The operations of the Company for the year under review have resulted in a net
profit of Rs.980 Lakhs.

DIVIDEND

Your Directors are pleased to recommend a dividend of 25% on the equity shares of the Company for
the year ended 31st March 2011, subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting.
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INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Employee relations continue to be cordial. Your Directors would like to express their appreclatton to ali
the employees for their contribution to the operations of the Company during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company is committed to maintaining high standards of Corporat:e‘_Goverhance. A Report on Corporate
Governance along with a certificate from the statutory auditors on compliance of Corporate Governance norms,
is part of this Annuatl Report. : :

Information required under section 217{2A) of the Companies Act 1956 Read with Companies
(Parhculars of Employment) Rules 1975

In terms of the prowsmns of section 217(2A} of the Companres Act, 1956, read with the Companies (Particu- ||
lars of Employees) Rules, 1975 as amended, the names and other particulars of the employees are set out
in the annexure to the Directors' Report. Having regard to the provisions of Section 219(1){b){iv) of the said act,
the Annual Report excluding the aforesaid information is being sent to all the members of the Company and
others entitled thereto. Any member interested in obtaining such particular may write to the Compliance

Officer at the registered office of the Company.

L. Information required under section 217 (2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with Companies (par-
ticulars of employment) Rules 1975

. Last
Si Desig Gross Date of com- Experience | employment
NO‘ Name nation Remuneration | Qualifi Age mencement of | fincluding previous held/
) (Rs) cation employment years if any | designation/
: organization
1 |C P Rangachag MD Rs.8,053,653| BEMIE | 68 1978.05.01 46 - Director-
PGi(P) Lid,
Chennai

1. Employment throughout the year under review and were in receipt of remuneration for that year in the
aggregate of not less than Rs 60,00,000 or'more. "~

2. Annual remuneration as above includes salary, allowances and perquisites.

3. The above appointment is contractual.

Il. Employees of the Company who were employed for part of the financial year and in receipt of remunera-
tion at a rate, which in aggregate was not less than Rs 500,000/- pm - NIL

DIRECTORS

Under section 256(1) of the Companies Act, 1956, and article 116 of the Articles of the Company,
Dr. Premchander, Director is liable to retire by rotation at this Annual General Meeting. He is eligible and offers
himself for re-appointment. Brief Resume of Directors proposed to be re-appointed, nature of their expertise
in specific functional areas, names of Companies in which they hold directorships and membership, their
share holding in the Gompany are provided in the notice of AGM.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to section 217 (2AA) of the Companies Act, 1856 your Directors confirm that:

1. In the preparation of the accounts for the year ended 31st March 2011, the applicable accounting stan-
dards have been followed.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

YUKEN

Such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent r_nade $0 as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the financial year ended 31st March 2011 and of the profit of the Company for that year.
Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accor-
dance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1956 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irmegularities.

The accounts for the year ended 31st March 2011 have been prepared on a going concem basis.

The Management Discussion and Analysis (MDA), which forms part of this Directors' Report, sets out an
analysis of business including the industry scenario, performance, financial analysis and risk mitigation.

CONSOL.IDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

in accordance with the Accounting Standard AS-21 on Consolidated Financial statements read with
Accountlng Standard AS-23 on Accounting for Investments in Associates, the Audited Consolidated Fman-
 cial Statements are provided in the Annual Report.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

in Accordance with the general Circular issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affaifs, Govemnﬁent of India,
the Balance sheet, Profit and Loss Account and other documents of the Subsidiary.Companies are not
being attached with the Balance sheet of the Company. '

The Company will make available the Annual Accounts of the subsidiary Companies and the related
detailed information to any member of the Company who may be interested in obtaining the same. The
Annual Accounts of the subsidiary Companigs will also be kept open for inspection by any investor at the
Registered Office of the Company and that of the respective subsidiary Companies. The consolidated
Financial Statements presented by the Company include financial resuits of its subsidiary Companies.

Durlng the yéar under rewew Your Company has the followmg subsidiary Companles viz (i) Coretec
Engineering India Pvt Lid, Bangatore {ii) Yutlow Englneenng 'Pvt. Ltd, Chennai and (i) Prism Hydraulics,
Pvt Lid, Belgaum.

CORPORATE SCCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Your Company recognizeé the community ‘as an imporant stakeholder in our business and believes in
‘sustainability’ as a core parameter of its business strategy.

" The Company provides opportunities to Engineering and Management Institute students to undergo in-

plant traininglpfojects as par of their academic curriculum, thus enabling to appreciate application of
theoretical knowledge and get an exposure to the industrial practlces ' '

The Company's employees part:mpate in blood donation camps every year and donate blood.

Employees are trained in ‘First -Aid' regularly. The Company has rain water harvesting systems in place
covering the entire Factory premises.
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[ During the year Your Company sponsored Toilet complex to .a Government High School at.Bagalur.

The Company's 'pro'ducts and services have very little or marginal impect on the environment and it adheres to
all related legal and statutory requirements.

Health, Safety & Environment. (HSE)
Health, Safety and environment are high priority issues In your Company.
Your Company conducts annual medical check up for its employees and assists the employees who need

medical attention or counseling. The employees and their dependents are covered under Health insurance
Scheme.

Awareness workshops on Safety in Industries are being conducted to the employees in- collaboration with the
Directorate of Factories and Boilers, Government of Karnataka.

With no reportable injuries during the year, we are committed to enhance occupational health and safety. Apart
from personnel safety, process safety is in the top priority of the Management. Well documented standards,
emphasis on line management responsibility, an improved and standardized process for safety observations
are helping the manufacturing sites achieve higher employee participation in the safety management.

All manufacturing Iocatlons remained fully compliant with Environmental Regulations. High emphasis was
placed on the productlve use of raw materials, natural resources, energy and on reducing wastes. We believe
that a sustainable Organization can be built only with the highest standards of performance on economic,
social and environmental parameters.

Disclosure of particulars under section 217(1){e} of the Companies Act, 1956

Energy conservation is a consistent focus area for the Company both from a cost control and a social respon-
sibility perspective. Energy conservation is a consistent endeavor of your Company. The poWer factor is
regularly monitored and maintained between 0.99 and 1.00.

INFORMATION UNDER SECTION 217 (1)(e) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 1956 READ WiTH COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS IN THE REPORT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS) RULES 1988:

1. Conservation of Energy:

The Operations of Your Company are not energy |ntenswe However, necessary care is being taken to
conserve energy by various measures.

2. Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo

Foreign Exchange Earnings:-

Export sales : S ©  Rs.B,678,514

Others - Rs.666,029

Expenditure in Foreign Currency on account of(on payment basis)

Interest ‘ Rs.4,515,535
Others. . _ S Rs.4,793,586
Brand Fee Rs.7,191,942

)
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Remittance in Foreign currency on account of:

Dividends ' ' Rs.30,00,000

{a)

(b)

Research and Development (R&D)

The Company continues to invest in R&D activities towards development of new products and applica-
tions, improvement in operating efficiencies, and reduction in manufacturing costs.

Development of larger size valves for process & steel industries, rugged vane pumps for special applica-
tions and development of high efficiency gear pumps are some of the areas where R&D was carried out

by the Company.
Benefits derived as a result of above R & D efforts.

Special Products developed to meet specific requirements of customers, which enable your Company to
develop niche markets for growth.

Future Plgan of action:

Development of additional range of products.

Focus on process improvements to enable the Company to penetrate the Export market.

Strong focus on employee involvement to eliminate waste in Operations through focused initiatives.
Expenditureon R &D.

There is a continuous increase on R & D expenditure as the scope of activities carried out goes on
increasing. The exact amount spent has not been apportioned this year.

Technology Absorption, Adaptation and Innovation:
(a) Efforts in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation.

Special models of pumps and valves have been designed to meet specific needs of customers and these
have enabled us to extend our customer base to include a wider range of industries.

Indigenization is continuous, on going effort.

Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts.

Reduction of material cost.

Quality improvement and improvement in product performance characteristics.
Ability to innovate and produce new products.

Information regarding technology imported during the last five years reckoned from the beginning
of the financial year.

Technology imported - NIL
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i Yearof Import : NFTA
liit Has technology been fully absorbed? N/A
v If not fully absorbed, areas where this has not taken place, reasons there off and future plans of action: N/A

AUDITORS

- Mfs Deloitte Haskins & Sells, Chartered Accountants, retiring at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, pursuant

to the provisions of Section 224 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 1956, be and are
hereby re-appointed as Auditors: of the. Company, to. hold office_from the conclusion of this meeting until the
conclusion of next Annual General Meeting of the Company on such remuneration as shall be fixed by the Board
of Directors."

FORWARD-L.OOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. When used in this Report,
the words "anticipate’, * befieve” , "estimate” , "expect”, “intend" , "will" and other similar expressions as they
relate to your Company and / or its business are intended to identify such forward-looking statements. Your
Company undertakes no ob!igatio'ri to publiély upd'at'e“or-'ré\'.risé 'any forward-locking statements, whether as a
result of new information, future events, or otherwise. Actual results, performances or achievements could
differ materially from those expressed or implied in such forward-locking statements. This report should be
read in conjunction with the financial statements included herein and notes thereto.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors thank the customers, vendors, financial institutions, banks, Collaborators, and investors for their
continued support. Your Directors also wish to place on record their appreciation of the contribution made by
all the employees of the Company for their performance in the year under review.

For and on behalf of the Board

V. Balaji Bhat R. Srinivasan C. P. Rangachar
Director ~UUTTUTTT"""Difgélor © Managing Director

Place : Bangalore
Date: 14th May 2011.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Overview
The giobal economy seems to be recovering after the recent economic setback. Changing economic and
business conditions, rapid technological innovation and globalization are creating an increasingly com-
petitive market environment that is driving corporations to transform the manner in which they operate.

Customers are increasingly demanding inniovative products and services with accelerated delivery times
and at competitive prices. To adequately address these needs, Corporations are focusing on their core
competencies using high technology to improve productivity, develop new products, conduct research
and development activities, reduce business risk and manage operations more effectively.

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

Changing economic and business conditions are creating increasingly competitive market environment
that is driving corporations to transform the manner in which they operate. The index of the industrial
production showed a moderate growth against the growth posted in the previous year.

The Hydraulic Industry is a measure of the progress of a nation in terms of industrialization as well as
social development. Obviously, extensive use of sophisticated hydraulics co-relates with a high level of
development.ylnspired by Yuken, Japan our value system comprises-service to customers; deep sense
| of responsibility; respect for human beings; quality and frugality in all we do.

CPPORTUNITIES, THREATS, RISKS AND CONCERNS

OPPORTUNITIES: _ \ _ _
The Company is one of the leading manufacturers and suppliers of power saving Oil Hydraulics with state
of the art, technology, efficiency and reliability. We provide a comprehensive range of hydraulic products,
services both within and outside India. '

We believe our competitive strengths which include Iéédérship in solutions that enable our customers to
optimize the efficiency of their business, commitment to superior quality, long standing client relation-
ships and competitive pricing. Some of the key trends in the Industry that are favorable to the Company
to exploit these emerging opportunities are,
i) Customers are more comfortable in continuing to partner with us in view of
enhanced quality, reduced lead time and competitive brices. |
iy Customers are also demanding delivery excellence from distributed business

units using uniform processes globally to deliver a high quality of service.

In order to leverage these opportunities, the Company has over the years, extended its geographic foot
print for effectively marketing its offers.

THREATS:

Some of the key changes in the Industry unfavorable to the Company are,

i) To cater to increasing customer demand with strong technology and domain knowledge, the
Company will have to invest increasingly higher amounts in equipments and facilities.

12
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i} Our business may suffer if we fail to anticipate and develop new products in a fixed time
schedule and enhance the existing products in order to keep pace with rapid changes in
tecnology and in the industries on which we focus. A strong Engineering base is needed to

accomplish this. -
iiiy There is continuing concerns oninput cost'increase‘s, it may not be possible for the Company
to pass on the cost increase through pricing.
) Lack of knowledge in handling SAP aided programs may jeopardize timely generation of re
poris and warranting more investment on up gradation.
v Highinventory and receivables may hafnperthéﬁr'bééss of financial planning.
RISK IDENTIFICATION & MITIGATION '

The Company assess the risks, priorities them and take necessary action to mitigate the same. Identification |

of risks is done through focused discussions at various management levels and at the Board Meeting.

The internal control systems are designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded;
transactions are executed in accordance with management's authorization and properly recorded and
accounting records are adequate for preparation of financial statements and other financial information.
The internal audit funé_ction performs internal audit pericdically to ascertain their adequacy and effective-
ness. The internal audit function also carries out Operations Review Audits to improve the processes and
strengthen controls of the existing processes.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act,
1956, guidelineé issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI} and Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAP) in India. Qur Management actepts responsibility for the integrity and ob-
jectivity of these financial statements, as well as for various estimates and judgments used therein. The
estimates and judgments relating to the financial statements have been made on a prudent and reason-
able basis, so that the financial statements reflect in a true and fair manner the form and substance of
transactions, and reasonably present our state of affairs, profits and cash flows for the year.

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW ‘ Rupeesin Lakhs
Year ending 31st March 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Sales 8,510 10,296 9,702 11,422 14,915
Profit before tax 699 960 151 1,036 1,466
Profit before tax to Sales% 8.21 9.32 1.55 9.07 9.82
Profit after tax 442 612 65 693 980
Profit after tax to Sales% 5.19 5.94 0.67 6.07 6.57
Return on Capital Employed% 18 20 8 24 25
Return on Net worth% 20 23 2 21 23
Book value per share Rupees 73 87 89 112 142
Earning per share Rupeesl 14.78 20.42 2.17 23.11 32.68
Dividend % 25 25 0 25 25

)

13
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HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT _

The Company continues to believe in the policy that people are the vital assets. The'Company is aware
of the present market condition and hence has retention policy in place by considering special packages
to the employees. The Company constantly endeavors to provide a platform for individual opportunities
and growth of its people across the board.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in this Management Discussion and Ahalysis describing the Company's situation may con-
stitute ‘forward looking statements' within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results
might differ materially from that either expressed or implied.
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CERTIFICATE

To the Members of Yuken India Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Yuken India Limited for the year
ended March 31, 2011, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said Company with stock
exchanges.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibiiity of the management. Qur
examination has been limited to a review of the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the
Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance as stipulated in the said
clause. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and the
representations made by the Directors and the management, we centify that the Company has complied with
the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Clause 49 of the above mentioned Listing Agreement.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the

efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
d.

kS

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells

Chartered Accountants

{Registration No.008072S)
Place: Bangalore 8. Ganesh

Date: June,23, 2011 Partner
(Membership No. 204108)
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance is based on the principles of integrity, fairess, equity, transparency, accountability and
commitment to values. Good governance practices stem from the culture and mindset of the Organization. As
li stake holders across the globe evince keen interest in the practices and performance of Companies, Corpo-

rate Governance has emerged on the center stage.
COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE:

The Company's philosophy on Corporate Govemance envisages attainment of the highest levels of transpar-
ency, accountability and equity in all facets of its Operations, and in all its interactions with its stake holders,
including share holders, employees, lenders, Government and the society at large. The Company believes that
all its actions must serve the underlying goal of enhancing overall shareholder value on a sustained basis.

As a Company engaged in the business of manufacture of Hydraulic Products for a large variety of end users,
the Company's principal objective is to deliver to its customers, quality products and a pro-active satisfactory
services. The Company complies with the Listing Requirements of the Stock Exchanges where its shares are
listed. ¢ ' '

The Company's policy therefore, envisages the assurance of product quality, transparency, accountability and
integrity in its Operations and in its relation with all stakeholders i.e. customers, suppliers, investors, employ-
ees, the Government and other associates. The details of compliance are as follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

At the core of our Corporate Governance practice is the Board, which oversees how the management serves
and protects the long-term interests of all the stakeholders of the Company. We believe that an active, well
informed and Independent Board is necessary to ensure the highest standards of Corporate Governance.

Composition

The Board comprises of Executive and Non-Executive Directors who are eminent persons with considerable
professional experience in various fields. There are two Executive Directors. Mr C P Rangachar, the Managing
Director and Mr S Yamanoi, the whole time director. All others are Non-Executive Directors. The Non-Executive
Directors bring independent judgment in the Board deliberations and decisions. During the year, the Company
had a Non- Executive Chairman and more than one third of the Directors were Independent Directors.

The Company has not had any pecuniary relationship / transaction with any of the Non-Executive Directors of

the Company.
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Attendance of each Director at the Board of Directors meetings during the year and at the last Annual General
Meeting , the number of Directorship and Committee Membership held by them in domestic public companies
as at March 31, 2011 are as indicated below:
Director Whether Promoter/ | Attendance *LOA Noof NoofBoard | Chairman/
Executive/Non- particufars outside Committees | Member
Executive/ DirectosShip | of other of Board
Independent/ held Companiesin { Committees
Non Independent whicha of other
Board Last member companies in
Meeting | AGM whicha
member
1. Mr. Y Mukaide Non-Executive
(Chairman) & Non Independent
{Collaborator) 1 Yes Yes - - -
2..Mr. Y Sakakibara Non-Executive
& Non Independent - - Y&c_ - - -
(Collaborator)
3.. M. § Yarnanot #| Non-Bxecutive 4 yes Yes - . -
& Non Independent
{Collaborator)
4 M. R Srinivasan Non- Executive 5 Yes - 1 3 Chairman
& Independent 4 Member
5. Mr. V Balaji Bhat Non- Executive 5 Yes - 4 5 Chairman
& Independent 4 Merber
6. CaptN S Mohanram Non- Executive 4 yes Yes - - -
& Independent
7. DrPremchander Non-Executive | 4 Yes - Yes i - -
8. Mr. CPRangachar- Executive & 5 Yes - 4 1 Member
Managing Director Non Indepdndent
(Promoter Group)
* LOA- Leave of Absence.
- — w/
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Board Meetings ' ‘

As per the Listing Agreement, the Board of Directors must meet at least four times in a year, with a maximum
time gap of four months between any two meetings.

During the financial year 2010-11, our Board met five times on 22/05/2010, 24/07/2010, 03/098/2010,
23/10/2010, & 24/01/2011. '

The information as required under Annexure - | A to clause 49 of the listing agreement is being regularly
placed before the Board. -

Board committee:

As per the Listing Agreement, no director ¢an be a member of more than ten committees or act as Chairman of
more than five committees across all Companies in which he is a director. None of the directors of our
Company were members in more than ten committees nor acted as Chairman of more than five committees
across all Companies in which they were directors,

CODEOF CONDUCT:
,(% .
kS
The Company's Code of Conduct as adopted by the Board of Directors, is applicable to all Directors, Senior

Management and employees of the Company. This code is derived from the principles of good corporate
governance, good corporate citizenship and exemplary personal conduct. The code is available on the Company's
Corporate Website. All the Board members and senior Management of the Company have affirmed compli-
ance with the Code of Conduct for the financial year ended 31st March, 2011. A certificate to this effect, duly
signed by the Managing Director is annexed thereto.

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Audit Committee of the Board and its constitution is in conformation with the requirements of section 292A
of the Companies Act, 1956 and also in conformation with requirements of Clause 49(I)(A) of the Listing
Agreement. R

The Audit Committee of the Board, inter alié, provides reassurance to the Board of the existence of an
effective internal control environment that ensures:

1. Efficiency and effectiveness of Operations.

2. Safeguarding of assets and adequacy of provisions for all liabilities.

3. Reliability of finaﬁcial and other management information and adequacy of disclosures
4. Compliance with all relevant statutes.

The Audit Committee is empowered, pursuant fo its terms of reference, inter alia, to:

1) Investigate any activity within its terms of reference.
2) Seek information from any employee.
3) Obtain outside legal or other professional advice.

4) To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary.
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The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as under:

1. OQversight of the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosures of the financial informa-
tion to ensure that the financiai statements are correct, sufficient and credible.

2. Recommending to the Board the appointment and removal of external auditors, fixation of audit fees
and approval for payment for any other services.

3. Reviewing, with management, the annual financial statements before submission to the Board for
approval with particular reference to

- Matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be included in the
Board's report in terms of Clause (2AA) of section 217 of the Companies Act, 1956

I - Any changés in accounting policies and practices

- Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by the manage-
ment

- Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings

- Compliances with listing and other legal requirements rélating to financial statements

- Disclosureg_of any related party' fransactions

- Qualificatibns in the draft audit report

4. Reviewing, with the management, statutory and internal auditors, the adequacy of the internal control
systems. '

5. Reviewing the adequacy of the internal audit functions, including the structure of the internal audit
department, approval of the audit plan and its execution and frequency of audit plan.

6. Discussion with internal auditors any significant findings and follow up thereon.

7. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there '
is a suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and
reporting the matter to the Board.

8. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit
| as well as has post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

9. Reviewing of management letters issued by statutory auditors.
10. Reviewing the Company's financial and risk management policies.

11. Looking into reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to depositors, debenture holders, share-
holders {in case of non-payment of declared dividend) and creditors.

12. Seek assistance form statutory auditors in such areas and in such manner as desired by the audit
Committee from time to time. :

13. Reviewing the Management Discussion and Analysis of financial condition and results of operations.

14. Reviewing with the Management, the quarterly financial statements before submission for approval.

15. Appointment of Chief Financial Officer (CFO) after the assessing the qualifications, experience &
background of the candidate. '
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The role, terms of reference and the authority and powers of the Audit Committee are in conformity with the)
requirements of the Companies Act 1956 and of the Listing Agreement.

Though the financial resuits are sent to the Audit Committee and the Board at the same time, the Audit Commit-
tee reviews the guarterly and yearly financial results and places a report on the same to the Board for its

consideration and approval.

As at the year end, the Audit Committee comprises of Mr. V Balaji Bhat, Chairman besides
Mr. R Srinivasan, Capt N S Mohanram and Mr. C P Rangachar, While Mr. V Balaji Bhat, Mr. R Srinivasan and Capt
N S Mohanram are Non-Executive & Independent Directors, Mr. C P Rangachar is an Executive Director. The
Vice President - Finance and representatives of Internal and Statutory Auditors are invitees to the meeting.

The Compiiance Officer functions as Secretary to the Committee.

All the members are financially literate and have relevant finance and/or audit exposure. Mr. V Balaji Bhat is a

financial expert.

During the year, four meetings of the Audit Committee were held, the dates being 22/05/2010, 24/07/2010,
| 23/10/2010, & 54/01/2011. The quorum as required under Clause 49{il}{B) was maintained at all the meetings.

The composition of the Audit Committee as at 31st March, 2011 and the attendance of the members at the Audit

Commitiee Meetings are as follows:

Director No of Meetings held No of Meetings attended
during the year during the year

Mr. V Balaji Bhat {Chairman)

Mr R Srinivasan

4
4
3
4

4
4
Capt N S Mohan Ram S
4

Mr. C P Rangachar

The Chairman of the Audit Committee Mr.V Balaji Bhat was present at the Annual General Meeting held on
3rd September, 2010. 1

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

The purpose of the Remuneration Committee of the Board shall be to discharge the Board's responsibilities
relating to the compensation of the Company's executive directors, non-executive directors and senior man-
agement. The Committee has overall responsibility for approving and evaluating the executive directors, non-

executive directors and senior management compensation plans, policies and programs.

The Company's remuneration strategy is to attract and to retain high caliber talents. The remuneration policy,
therefore, is market- lead and takes into account the competitive circumstances of business so as to
attract and to retain quality, talent and leverage performance significantly.

S—— ——vier
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As at the year end, the Remuneration Committee comprises of three Non-executive & Independent Directors,
Mr. R Srinivasan as Chairman besides Mr. V Balaji Bhat and Dr. Premchander as members.

During the year, no meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held.
SHARES TRANSFERS AND INVESTORS GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE:
The Shares Transfers and Investors Grievance Committee is authorized to:

a) Monitor the system of share transfer, transmission,.sub-division, consolidation, De-Materialization
and Re-Materialization.

b} Deal with all investor related issues including redressed Complaints from shareholders relating to

transfer of shares, non-receipt of Balance Sheet eic

¢} To delegate such powers to Companies Officers, as may be necessary including powers to approve
transfers, transmissions, authenticate share certificates and to take actions in relation to shareholder
related matters.

During the year, the Board has authorized Mr H M Narasinga Rao, CFO & Mr S Antony Cruz, Compliance Officer
to be the member of share transfer committee to look into share transfer related matters and to the grievances
of investors. The proceedings are to be reported at the Board Meetings for the Board to take note of.

Committee Meeting held during the year is as follows:

Director No of Meetings held | No of Meetings attended
during the year during the year
Mr. H M Narasinga Rao 6 6
Mr. S Antony Cruz 6 6

The statistics of shareholders complaints received/redressed during the year is furnished below:

Sk no Nature of Complaints Received Addressed Pending

1 Complaints with regard to non-receipt of share
certificates 1 1 -

2 | Complaints with regard to non-receipt of
Dividend warrant 6 6 ' -

3 Complaints with regard to non-receipt of

Annual Report 3 3 -
4 | Others{ complaints received through SE/SEBI) 2 2
TOTAL . A 12 12 -

)
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SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES:
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The Company does not have any material non-listed Indian subsidiary company and hence it is not mandatory
to have an Independent Director on the Board of such subsidiary company. The Audit Committee reviews the
financial statements, particularly, the investments made by the Company's non-listed subsidiary companies.
The minutes of unlisted subsidiary companies have been placed before the Board for their attention.

The accounts of all subsidiary companies are placed before the Directors of the Company on a regular basis
and the attention of the directors is drawn to all significant transactions and arrangements entered into by the

subsidiary companies. ...........

DISCLOSURES:
(A) Related Party transactions:

During the financial year ended 31st March 2011, besides the transactions reported in Note 5 of Schedule
12 to the Financial Statements in the Annual Report, there were no other material related party transac-
tions. These transactions do not have any potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.
Further, there are no material individual transactions that are not in the normal course of business or not
on arm's length basis.
A
(B) Disclosure of accounting treatment:
The Company has followed all relevant Accounting Standards while preparing the Financial Statements.
{C) Risk Management:

The Company has in place an integrated approach to manage risks inherent in various aspects of our
business. The Company has established procedures to periodically place before the Board the risk
assessment and minimization procedures being followed by the Company and steps taken by it 1o miti-
gate these risks. )

(D) Proceeds from public issue, right issue, preferential issue etc:
The Company has not raised any capital during the year ended 31st March, 2011.
(E)} Remuneration of Directors

Details of remuneration paid to the Executive Directors for the year 2010-11 ™

{In Rupees)
Description 31st March 2011
C P Rangachar S Yamanoi
{Managing Director) | (Whole Time Director)

Salary _ 4,550,000 1,538,148
Cbntribution to Provident and Superannuation Fund 1,120,500 110,747

. Monetary Value of Perquisite 616,192 728,000
L eave salary for the year 350,000 -
Commission . : 1,816,961 -
Total * ‘ 8,053,653 2,376,895

* excludes charge for gratuity as separate actuarial valuation figures are not available

N
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There are no stock oplions issued to the Managing Director.

Commission payable to Non - Executive Directors:

Director Amount payable (Rs.)
Mr. Y Mukaide 268,455
Mr. Y Sakakibara 268,455
Mr. R Srinivasan ' 268,455
Mr. Balgji Bhat = 268,455
Capt N 8 Mohanram 268,455
' Dr Premchander 268,455

Non-Executive Directors:

The compensation of the Non-Executive Directors is in the form of sitting fees and commission n'ot exceeding
1% of the net profits of the Company so long as the Company has a whole time Director and /-or Managing
Director, as recommended by the remuneration committee and Board of Directors and approved by the share-

holdérs. #

The Non-Executive Directors were in receipt of sitting fees 6f Rs 5625/- per meeting upto 31/10/2010 and

Rs.10,000/- from 01/01/2011 on wards.

Sitting Fees paid to Non-Executive Directors:

S : Audit Remunera- Shares Total
oar i ;
Direc;or Meeting c:n':;?i'rtltgee Cor::::;ttee Tra::;ers (Re)
Meeting Investors
Grievance
Committee
Meeting
© MY Mukaide 1 - P - 5,625
Mr. Y Sakakibara - - - - -
Mr. R Srinivasan 5 4 - - 59,375
Mr. V Balaji Bhat 5 4 - - 59,375
Capt N S Mohanram 4 3 - - 48,125
Dr. Premchander 4 - - - 26,875
1 TOTAL 199,375

None of the Non-Executive Directors hold shares or debentures of the Company.

There is no notice period and severance pay. No stock options have been given to any of the directors.
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[( (F} Management Discussion and Analysis :
The management's discussion and analysis report forms part of Annual Report.
CEQ/CFQ CERTIFICATION:

The Managing Director being the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) and the Vice President- Finance being the Chief
Financial Officer (CFO) have certified to the Board in accordance with Clause 49(V) of the Listing Agreement
pertaining to CEQ/CFO certification for the financial year ended March 31,2011, which is annexed there to.

GENERAL BODY MEETING:

Particulars of the past three Annual General Meetings held is furnished below:

Location, date and time of Jast three Annual General Meetings held:

Year Date Location Time

2007-08 8th September 2008 | Hotel Woodlands (P) Lid, 10.00 am
Raja Ram Mohan Roy Road,
Bangalore-560025

e

2008-08 26th August 2009 Regd Office: 10.00 am
PB16, Whitiefield Road,
Whitefield.
Bangalore-560066

2009-10 3rd September,2010 | . Hotel Woodlands (P) Ltd, 10.00 am
Raja Ram Mohan Roy Road,
Bangalore-560025

The Company has passed a special resolution in AGM held.on 3rd September,2010 re appointing
Mr. C.P Rangachar as a Managing Director of the Company for a pericd of 5(five) years commencing from
1st May,2010 and fix the remuneration for the first 3(three) years, that is from 01.05.2010 to 30.04.2013. At the -
{| same meeting the Company has also passed a special resolution re-appointing Mr. S Yamanoi as Whole time
director for a period of 3{Three) years with effect from 1st April,2010, and fixed the remuneration.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

The quarterly financial results of the Company were sent to the Stock Exchanges immediately after the Board
took the same on record.

The quarterly financial results are being published in the Business Standard (English) and Hosa Digantha
{Kannada) newspapers.

No presentation has been made to Institutional Investors or to the Analysts.
GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:

a) Annual General Meeting : 2nd September 2011, at 10.00 am at Hotel Woodlands (P} Limited, Raja
Ram Mohan Roy Road, Bangalore-560 025

L
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b} Financial Calendar:

) Financial Year: | Aprilto March
i) First Quarter Results: "~ . . July

iify Second Quarter Results: .October

iv) Third Quarter Resuits: | January

v) Results for the year endingi_ O

¢) Date of Book Closure: 29/08/2011 to 02/09/2011 {bothdays inclusive)
d) Proposed Dividend : 25% . . o '

e} Dividend Payment Date : 05/09/2011

f) Listing on Stock Exchanges '

i) Bangalore Stock Exchange L:mlted Bangalore
iy Bombay Stock Exchange L|msted, Mumbal
i) Ahmedabad Stock Exchange Limited, - Ahmedabad
The listing fees for the year 2010-11 have been patd to-the above Stock Exchanges

Listing of Shares
Company's shares are listed at: .

1 Bangalore Stock Exchange Limited (BgSE)
" Stock Exchange Towers,”
- 51, 1st Cross, J C Road Bangaiore-560027
Scrip Code; 522108 :

2. Bom bay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE)
Phiroz Jeejeebhoy Towers
Dalal Street, ' =
Mumbai-400 001
Scrip Code: 522108

'3. Ahmedabad Stock Exchange Limited, (ASE)
Kamadhenu. Complex

Panjra Pole
Ambawadi
Ahmedabad-380015.

Registrar of Share Transfer Agents:

Karvy Computershare Pvt Lid,
17-24, Vittal Rao Nagar,
Madhapur,

* Hyderabad-500 081
Phone: 040 23420815-28
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{(g) Market Price Data: .
1.High - Low during each month in the year 2010 -11 at Mumbai Stock Exchange is furished below:

Sl. No. Month " High Low
1 Apr-10 197.55 155.10 .
2 May-10 210.50 160.00
3 Jun-10 251.00 197.00
4 Jul-10 280.00 218.50
5 Aug-10 2447007 215.35
6 Sep-10 263.40 218.00
7 Oct-10 313.95 - 234.00
8 Nov-10 340.00 253.25
9 Dec-10 306.00 240.00
10 Jan-11 309.50 254.50 -
11 Feb-11 ~270.00 203.00
RE Mar-11 247.00 218.10

The trading in the other Stack Exchanges was negligible during the year ended 31st March 2011.

{h) Share Transier System

All the transfers received are processed and approved by the Shares Transfers and Investor Grievance Com-

mittee at its meeting. )

The Company's Registrars and Share Transfer Agent M/s Karvy Computershare Limited, Hyderabad has

adequate infrastructure to process the share transfers. The Committee meets to approve the transfers etc as

may be required by the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents. In compliance with the Listing Guidelines, every

six months a Practicing Company Secretary audits the system and a certificate to that effect is issued and the
. same Is filed with the Stock Exchanges. ' '

The Company has not issued any GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any Convertible Instruments.

The Company had no transfer of shares pending as on 31st March 201.

i Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March 2011:

Shareholding of Nominal value of Share Holders | Share Amount Nominal Value

From To . No of cases | % of cases Amount % of Amount
1 - 5000 ‘ 4607 92.44 5295110.00 17.65
5001 - 10000 = 205 4.11 1675210.00 5.58
10001 - 20000 81 1.63 1217990.00 4.06
20001 - 30000 37 0.74 908640.00 - 3.03
30001 - - 40000 13 026 | 454330.00 . 1.5%
40001 - 50000 11 0.22 513340.00 1.71
50001 - 100000 1 0.22 810750.00 2.76
100001 & Above 19 0.38 - |19124630.00 - 6375
TOTAL 4984 100.00 30,000,000 100.00
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(k) Sharehoiding Pattern as on 31st March, 2011:

{j) Plant Location/address for correspondence:. . .
The Company's plant is located at Bangaiore, Kamataka.
Address for Communication
Yuken India Limited, -
PB 16, Whitefield Road,
Whitefield,
Bangalore-560066
Karnataka, India. _
Telephone: 080 28453810, 28452262
Fax: 080 28452261, 28451560
e-mail: yilinfo@yukenindia.com -

Category =~ D No-of Shares Percentage of

_ C Co o Held - Shareholding
Prornoter's Holding . | 1578282 . | . 5254
Mutual Funds and UT1 L 4500 . 0.05
Flis P e | T
Private Corporate Bodies _ L 162348 | - 541
Indian Public ' 1,162,763 3876
NRIS/OCBs S ] 81,508 272
Others . .l 18899 | o052
Grand Total 3,000,000 100.00

1.

n 5§rectors seekiﬁg éppointmentl re-appdinﬁment .

As required. under Clause 49(IV)(G), particulars of Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment are given in the
Explanatory Statement and Annexure 1o the Notice of the Annual General Meeting to be held on 2nd September 2011.

STATUS OF COMPLIANCE OF NON MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS:

The Board:

No separate office is.maintained for Non-Executive Chairman.
The Board has not specifically determined the maximum tenure for independent directors. They are liable
to retire by rotation as per applicable provisions and if eligible, may be re-appointed at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company.

Remuneration Committee:

Details are given under the heading 'Remuneration Committes'.

Sharehoider rights:

The quarterly and annual financial results of the Company are published in leading newspapers and are
provided to stock exchanges in compliance with the provisions of the Listing Agreement. The complete
annual report is sent to each and every shareholder of the Company.

Audit qualitications:

During the year under review, there was no audit qualification in the Company's financial statements.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEQO) AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) CERTIFICATION

We, C. P. Rangachar, Chief Executive Officer & the Managing .Director and HM Ndrasingé Rao, Chief
Financial Officer & Vice President-Finance of Yuken India Limited, Bangalore, to the best of our knowl-
edge and belief, certify that in respect of the financial year on 31st March,2011.

1. We have reviewed finaricial statements and the cash flow statement for the yeararid that to the best
of our knowledge and belief,

i} these statements do not contain any matenally untrue statement or omut any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading;

) i'i'}* thesé statements togéether present a true and fair view of the Compahy’s"affairs and are in compli-
- ance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the'Company
during the period which are fraudulent, illegal or volatile of the Company's Code of Conduct.

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and
that we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to
financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the
design or operatiori of internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or
propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

4. We haveé indicated to the auditors and the audtf-bommittee,
i) significant changes in iriternal controf during the period;
ii) significant changes in accounting policies during the period and that the same have been dis-

closed in the notes to the financial statements;

iii} instances of sighificant fraud if any, of which we have become aware and the involvement therein,
if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company's internal
control system for financial reporting.~

(H M NARASINGA RAO) - { C P RANGACHAR)
Chief Financial Officer & Chief Executive Officer &
VP-Finance. : Managing Director.

Place: Bangalore
Date: 14/05/2011
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* AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF YUKEN INDIA LIMITED

: 1. We have audlted the attached Balance Sheet of YUKEN INDIA LIMITED {"the Company) as at March 31,

2011, thie Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement of the Company for the year ended on that

" date, both annexed thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's Manage-
ment. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

‘ 2. We conducted -our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those

: Standards require that we plah and perform the atidit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

\' financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examinirig, on a test basis,

evidence supporting the amounts and the disclosures in the financial statemerits. An audit also includes

‘ assessing the accounting prmc:ples used and the sugn:flcant estimates made by the Management, as

! well as evaluatmg the overall financial statement presentatron We belleve that our audit provides a
reasonable ba31s for our opinion.

3. Asrequired by the Companies (Audltor's Report) Order 2003 (CARO) issued by the Central Governnient
. in terms of Section 227(4A) of the Companies Act, 1956, we give in the Annexure a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 4 and-§ of the said- Order. :

; 4. Further to our comments in the Aninexure referred to in paragrapht 3 above, we report that:

(i) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

{ii) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Compariy so far as it

i appears from our examination of those books;

{iliythe Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss Account and the Gash Flow Statement dealt with by this report
are in agreement with the books of account;

{iv} in our opinion, the Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement deait with
by this report are in compliance with the Accounting Standards referred to in Section 211(3C) of the
Companies Act, 1956;

{v} in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the said
¥ accounts give the information required by the Companies Act, 1956 in the manner so required and give
' a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

{a} in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2011;
{b) inthe case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date; and
(¢) inthe case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows of the Company for the year ended on that date.

5. On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on March 31, 2011 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, we report that none of the Directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2011
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 274(1)(g) of the Companies Act, 1956.

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells -
Chartered Accountants
Registration No: 0080725

S. Ganesh
Place: Bangalore : _ Partner
Date : May 14, 2011 M. No. 204108
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ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT _
(Referred to in paragraph 3 of our report of even date})

() Having regard to the nature of the Company's business/activities/result, clauses iv (b) to (d) and {fito
(@), v{b), vi, viii, xH, iii xiv, xix, xx of paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,
2003 are not applicable to the Company. o

In respect of its fixed assets:

{2) The Company has maintained prope_r records showing full particulars, including quantitative de-
tails and situation of the fixed assets.

(b) As explained to us, the fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management
in accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, provrdes for physical
verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the information and expla-
nations given to us, the reconciliation of physical stock with book records is in progress.

{c) The fixed assets disposed off during the year, in our opinion, do not constitute a substantial part
of the fixed assets of the Company and such disposal has, in our opinion, not affected the going
concern status of the Company. -

Inrespect of its inventory:

(2) As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified dunng the year by the Management at
reasonable intervals.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanatrons given to us, the procedures of
physical verification of inventories followed by the Management were reasonable and adequate in
relation to the size of the Company and the nature of rts busrness

(¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations glven to us, the Company has
generally maintained proper records of its inventories.

(v) The Company has nerther granted nortaken any Ioans, secured or unsecured, to/from compa-
nies, firms or other part:es listed inthe Register mamtamed under Section 301 of the Companies’

Act, 1956.

) Inour opinion and according to the information and expianations given to us, having regard to the
explanations that some of the items purchased are of special nature and suitable alternative
sources are not readily available for obtaining comparable quotations, there is an adequate
internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its busi-
ness with regard to purchases of inventory and fixed assets and the sale of goods and services.
During the course of our audit, we have not observed any major weakness in such internal control
system.

(v Inrespect of contracts or arrangements entered in the Register maintained in pursuance of
Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956, to the best of our knowledge and belief and according to
the information and explanations given to us the particulars of contracts or arrangements referred
to Section 301 that needed to be entered in the Register maintained under the said Section have

been so entered. J
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(vil} In our opinion, the internal audit fiinctions catried out during the year by a firm of Chartered Accoun-
tants appointed by the management have been commensurate with the size of the Company and
the nature of its busmess

(viii} According to the mformatton and epranattons given fo us, in respect of statutory dues:

{a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed dues, including Provident
Fund, Investor Education and Protection Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales
Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other material statutory
dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

(b} There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Investor Education

_ and Protection Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service

Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March
31, 2011 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

{c) There are no dues of lncome-t_ax', Séles Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise
Duty, Cess which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2011 on account of disputes.

(ix). The company is not having any accumulated losses and has not incurred any cash losses in the
financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

() Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks. There are no borrowings from financial institutions

and debenture holders.

{xi} Inouropinion and according to the' information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
given any guarantee for loans taken by others from banks and financial institutions.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans have
been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained other than temporary dep[oyment
pending application.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the Balance Sheet, we report that funds raised on short-term basis have not been
used during the year for long- term investment.

(xiv) The Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties and compames covered
in the Register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956,

(xv) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company and no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reporied during the year.

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
Registration No: 008072S

S. Ganesh
Partner
M. No. 204108

Place: Bangalore

Date : May 14, 2011 "l
‘\
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31/03/2011

SCHSOD”"E As at 31/03/201% As a1 31/03/2010 ’
o Rs. Rs. fs. Rs.
{h sounces o Funps -
4] 1. Shareholders' Funds:
a)Sharg Capital _ L . o - 30,000,000 30,000,000
b)Reserves and Surplus : 2 | 387,902,568 298,588,743
: o KRR ' -7 | 417,902,566 : 328,585,743
{ 2LoanFunds o . . .8 S I 4 ’
) Secured Loans ' 281,262,212 182,394,145
b} Unsecured Loans ] : ' 50,000,000 | - T 32,500,000
oo o 331,262,212 214,894,145
3.Deferred Tax Liabllity(Net} ‘ - | ‘19488988 .- - - *15,906,783
Total ' : ' o 768,653,746 : 559,389,871
IIAPPIJCATIONOFFUNDS L
1. Fixed Assets BT 4
‘M a) Gross Block . 452,066,285 . 425,354,764
Tt b)Less: Accumulated Depraciatlonllmpairment cp " | 194,043:857 - 187,185,679
: oo .- {2s8022628| - = . ] 238,169,085
i ) Capital Work in Progress inc!udlng Gaphal Advances 93,648,979 4,266,398
: o A 351,671,607 . . ]| 242,4354383
2. Invasiments ' ' 5 31.494 550 { ’ 22,081,250
3. Currant Assefs Loans & Advances 6
a) Inventorigs . S PR gL 216028495 . .. . . 164,823,412
b} Sundry Debtors . {asr907999| | 367,370,118
) Cash ahd Bank Balances B ' " | g3a79000 . 30,082,012
i d) Loans and Advances 55,261,030 L. 57,472,799
736,376,614 619,748,342
-Less: Current Liabilitles & Provistons. . - | ... 7. . .| . : R
&) Ligbilitios ) ) ' 315,996,168 290,953,258
b) Provisions ' T B8 T 34,892857 | ’ 33,922,147
| 350,889,025 | 324,875,405
- Net Current Assets S . g -] . 385,487,589 . -1 294,872,937
Total 5 . 768,653,746 559,389,670

Significant Accounting policies and Notes on Accounts 12

The schedules referrad to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet

In terms of our report attached - . -

for Deloltte Haskins & Seils - : SR o ' Forand on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants S s

S .Ganesh ' ' V.Balaji Bhat R.Srinivasan C.P.Rangachar
Partner ' - -~ Director Director : Managing Director

Place : Bangalore . : H M Narasinga Rao

Date : 14th May, 2011 SR PR RO Chief Financial Officer



YUKEN INDIA LIMITED

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31/03/2011

_YUKEN

The schedules refarred to above form an integral part of the Profit & Loss Account
in terms of our repor! attached

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Charlered Accountants

R.Srinivasan
Director

S .Ganesh
Partner

V.Balaji Bhat
Director

Place :Bangalore .
Date: 14th May, 2011

Schedule No. Current year " Previous Year
Rs Rs
Income
Gross Sales 1,645,142,085 1,239,328,013
Less: Excise Duty 153,626,142 97,143,532
Net Sales 1,491,515,943 1,142,184,481
Other Income i 8 16,906,454 21,063,628
l 1,508,422,397 1,163,188,109
Raw Materials, Components and Stores’ consumed S 9 774,423,129 551,029,310
(Increase)/Decrease in Stocks 10 (18,560,020) (2,383,543)
Manufacturing, Admlmslrahon ,Selling and other Expenses 11 555,596,103 457,728,032
Interest. 25,140,244 27,921,099
Depreciation/ Amortisation 4 25,210,243 25,243,633
1 1,361,809,699 1,059,538, 531
1Profit before tax 146,612,698 103,649,578
Provision for Taxation ‘
Current Tax 45,000,000 35,400,000
Deferred Tax 3,582,185 (1,084,217)
Profit after tax . ' ‘ 98,030,513 69,333,795
Add: Surplus broughi forward from the previous year 265,830,906 212,242,863
Amount available for approprlallon 363,861,419 281,576,658
Appropriations:
General Reserve 10,000,000 7,000,000
[Proposed Dividend 7,500,000 7,500,000
Tax on Dividend 1,216,688 1,245,750
Surplus Carried forward 345,144,731 265,830,908
Basic & Dliu!ed Earnmgs Per Share(Face value of equity share
of Rs.10/- each) 3268 2.1
{Refer note 8 of Schedule 12B)
Aggregate number of shares used for :
[Computation of Basic & Diluted Earnings per share 3,000,000 3,000,000
Significant Accounting policies and Notes on Accounts 12

Fdr-and on behalf of the Board

‘C.P.Rangachar
Managing Director

H M Narasinga Rao

Chief Financial Officer
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=
" GASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t March 2011.
. . - ‘ Year Ended . Year Ended
_Particulars. , .. : 3tstMarch 2011 |- .31st March 2010
A.Cash flow from operating activities- - : : )
Net profit before tax i ) 146,612,698 103,649,578
Adjustments for : :
“Depreciation/ Amertisation -~ = - : 25,210,243 25,243,633
-Unrealised Exchange difference {4,644) {75,002)
~Loss/(Profit) on salef/scrap of Fixed Assets/CWIP (net} 136,537 ) 1,772,399
“Voluntary Relirement Scheme * . - 7,683,328
-Provision for doubtfut debts (Nef) 1,034,388 2,749,944
-Provision for Doubtful advances i ) ' o - 2,035,135
-Liabllities no longer required written back (2,798,939) {833,536)
-Bad debts written off . : 3,742,637 3,492,116
-Interest income on margin money deposit and others (2,584,438) (981,348)
-Dividend income ' : {1,806,000) {1,325,308)
-Interest expense -~ - e o 25,140,244 27,921,099
Operating profit before working capital changes 194,682,626 171,332,038
Adjustments for :
-{Increase)/Decrease in sundry debtors ‘ {81,327,613) {56,442,535)
-(increase)/Decrease in inventories ‘ {51,205,082) 14,660,058
-(Increase)/Decrease in loans and advances 10,209,884 . 6,244,577
--Increase/(Decrease) in current liabilities and provisions E 27,358,805 115,413,340
Cash generated from operations - © 99,718,620 | . 251,207,477
-Direct taxes paid (Net) . : (50,765,241) (30,723,058}
Net cash from/(used In) operating activities (A} 48,953,379 220,484,419
B.Cash flow from investing activities
Additions to fixed assets (including capital WIP ard Capital advances ) (138,251,728); - {14,492,081)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 3,668,823 19,672,040
Investment in equity shares of Hycom Engg.{l} P Ltd {9,413,300) -
Dividend received S - : 1,806,000 1,325,308
Interest received ’ 2,386,699 981,348
Net cash from/{used in} investing activities (B) . {139,803,506) . 7,786,615
C.Cash flow from financing activities ) . .
Proceeds from borrowings 220,434,042 138,354,136
Repayment of borrowings ) : . {103,744,464) {329,929,705)
Dividends paid {8,687,591) . - {28,126)
Interest paid {25,118,442) (28,446,947)
Net cash from/(used in) financing activittes (C) . 82,883,545 (220,051,642)
Net cash flows during the year(A+B+C) - _ i ‘ (7,966,582) 8,219,392
Cash and cash equivalents {opening balance) 30,082,012 21,898,701
Addi{Less): Unrealised exchange (gain)/loss o ) 450,752 414,671 |
’ B ’ s c . 30,532,764 . 22,313,372
Cash and cash equivalents (closing balance) 23,179,050 30,082,012
Add/(Less): Unrealised exchange {(gain)/loss ‘ (612,908) 450,752
: o . 22,566,182 © 30,532,764
increase / {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {7,966,582) 8,219,392
Significant Accounting policies and Notes on Accounts 12 s
The schedule referred to above ferm an Integral part of the cash flow statement.
Cash and Cash equivalents include Cash and Bank balances as per Balance Sheet have been considered as balance with Scheduled
Banks on dividend account Rs.783,344/- (Rs. 725,185/-) and balance in Margin Money deposit account of Rs.5,871,790 (Rs. 2,570,200/
)which are available for restricted use by the Company.
for Deloitte Haskins & Sells ; For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants ]
S .Ganesh : V.Balaji Bhat R.Srinlvasan C.P.Rangachar
Partner Director Director Managing Director
Place : Bangalore H M Narasinga Rao’
Date : 14th May, 2011 Chief Financial Officer
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i A
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
SHARE CAPITAL : SCHEDULE 1
As at 31/03/2011 As at 31/03/2010
"Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Authorised .. ’
6,000,000 (6,000,000) Equity -
Shares of Rs.10/- each 60,000,000 60,000,000
[ssued subs.crlbeg andpaidap - . o T
3,000,000 (3,000,000) Equity Shares of
Rs.10/- each fully paid up 30,000,000 30,000,000
Total 30,000,000 30,000,000
RESERVES ANQ SURPLUS SCHEDLULE 2
As at 31/03/2011 As at 31/3/2010
. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
General Reserve - .
As per Last Balance Sheet 32,757,835 26,757,835
Add :Transfer from Profit and Loss Account 10,000,000 42,757,835 7,000,000 32,757,835
Surplus as shown in the Profit and Loss Account 345,144,731 265,830,908
Total 387,902,566 298,588,743
LOAN FUNDS - SCHEDULE 3
, As at 31/03/2011 As at 31/3/2010
- Rs. Rs. Rs, . Rs.
a) Secured Loans
LongTerm Loan . .
From a Bank 177,015,956 125,686,373
(Payable within one year Rs.31,267,245/-(Rs. 1254 686 373! -) ) )
From others . 1,036,026 2,279,490
(Payable within one year Rs.1,036,026/-(Rs. 1 37 358]-) . - 178,051,982 ' 127,965,863
Short Tearm Loan *
From a Bank 100,117,808 -
Cash Credit Account - From a Bank 3,092,422 9,087,457
Working Capital Demand loan - From a Bank - 45,340,825
Total-{a} 281,262,212 182,394,145
Short Term Loan '
Froma Bank 50,000,000 20,000,000
Other Loan from a Bank ' - 12,500,000
{Payable within one year Rs.Nil /-(Rs.12,500,000) 50,000,000 32,500,000
Total{b) 56,000,000 32,500,600
Grand Total (a+h) 331,262,212 214,894,145

'y

"Secured Loan - Note:

1. Loans from bank are fully secured by exclusive first charge on thé Assets of the Company.
2. Loan from others are secured by hypothecation of Motor Vehicles.
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YUKEN INDIA LIMITED | . YORER
' SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

‘SCHEDULE 5

As at 31/03/2011 As at 31/3/2010
Rs. Rs. Rs. Hs.

LONG TERM - UNQUOTED AT COST
TRADE

In Subsidi; mpanie;
1,000,000 (1,000,000} Fully paid equity shares of Rs. 10/—each of
Yuflow Engineering Pvi Lid, . 16,020,000, 16,020,000

480,000 (480,000} Fully pald equity shares of Rs.10/- each of Coretec
Engineering india Pvt Ltd. — 1,200,000 1,200,000

2,250 (2,250) Fully paid equity shares of Rs.100/-each of Prism
Hydraulics Pwt, Ltd 2,441,250 2,441,250

19,661,250, 19,661,250]
In_Others '

360,000 (360,000} Fully paid equity shares of Rs 10/- each of Sai India
Ltd ( 160,000 equity shares of Re.10/- each received as bonus shares) 2,000,000 2,000,000,

37,000 (37,000) Fully paid equity shares of Rs.10/- of Bourlon :
Consulting {India) Pvt Ltd : 370,000] : 370,000]

NON TRADE
2,000 (2,000} Fully paid eqwtygshares of Rs 25/- each of The Shamrac 50,000 50,000)

Vittal Co-operative Bank Ltd -~
941,330 {Nil) Fully paid equity shares of Rs.10/- gach of Hycom 9,413 300 .
Engineering (India} Private Limited ) ) o

Total - 31,494,550 22,081,250
Unquoted tnvestment at cost 31,494,556 . ) 22,081,250]
[Quoted Investment at cost '

37
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I " SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

Considered doubtful

Other Debts -Considered good

- . : SCHEDULE &
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES )
‘ . ‘ T As at 31/03/2011 As at 31/3/2010
. Rs. fs. As. Rs.
Tools ) 5,731,611 5,600,250}
Raw Materials & Components 126,588,701 94,522,551
Raw Material in Transit 3,447,668 3,000,11
Work in Process 51,547,937} 38,050,34:'
Finished Goods 28,712,578 23,650,149
216,028,495 164,823,412
b) Sundry Debtors
Unsecured- Dues from subsidiaries
Debts QOutstanding for a Period Exceading
$ix Months - Considered” good 7,151,231 2,562,789
Other Debts -Considered good 2,591,095 2,844,323
9,742,326 5,407,112
Unsecured-Others
Debts Outstanding for a Period Exceeding o )
Six Months - Considered good 34,490,187 51,340,610

515521833
56,893,44

| 310,622,397

367,515,841
Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts 5,552,834]
4. | 432,165,673 361,963,007,
o 441,907,959 . 367,370,119
g)_Cash and Bank balances '
Cash On Hand 232,357 : 442,123
Chegues on Hand L 3,186,082 ) -
Balances with Schedulad Banks:- -
On Currant Account ‘ 13,105,517 26,344,504
On Margin Money Daposit Account 5,871,79 2,570,200
. On Unclaimed Dividend Account 783,3 725,185]
19,760,651 28,639,88!
23,179,090 30,082,01
d) Loans and Advances '
Unsecured and consldered good:
Advances recoverabie in cash or in kind or for
" vaiue to be received 29,644,157| 27,421,757
Less: Provision for Doubtful advancas . - 29,644,157, 2,035,135] 25,366,622
Due from Subsidiaries 13,517,437
{(-Refer note 12 of Schadule 128)
Daeposit with Excise Authoritles 1,673,808
Deposit Others 5,451,200
8,407,900 20,642,445
38,052,057, 46,029,067
INCOME TAX
Advance Tax {Net) 11,154,197
FRINGE BENEFIT TAX
Advance Tax {Net} 289,535]
. 57,472,799
Total ' s19,74a,342|




YUKEN INDIA LIMITED

“SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET -
) ’ ‘ . L o SCHEDULE 7
CURRENT LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS : ; ‘ As at 31/03/2011 As at 31/3/2010
Rs. Rs. As. Rs.
a) Current Liabilities - o
Sundry Creditors s :
Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises N ‘ 11,507,167 4,930,698
Dues to others - Cee 290,347,645 ' 275,816,728
Other statutory Liabilities . 9,908,517 7,531,330
Compmission to Managing Director & Other Durectors 3427692 . .- .1 1949317
‘ -1 Unclaimed Dividend _ 783,344 : 725,185
\ Interest accrued but not due on loans - e 21,803 ) -
‘ . 315,996,168 290,953,258
V . :
Income Tax (Net). = - R .12,144,397 12,144,397,
Fringe Benefit Tax (Net) ' _ 304,340 : - 304,340
Gratuity - : S : 1,608,978 2,162,096
Leave Salary C . 12,118,454 . 10,565,564}
Proposed Dividend . . 7,500,000 ) 7,500,000
Tax on Proposed Dividend o 1,216,688 1,245,750}
Tooe e S : 34,892,857, 33,922,147
Total S o 350,889,025 324,875,405
OTHER INCOME . ' SCHEDULE 8
) ’ B Current Year ’ Previous Year
: E ‘ ‘Rs. - - __Rs.. Rs. Rs.
{Interest Income on Margin Money Deposit and others . .
(Tax deducted at source Rs. 25,842/-(Rs.20,409/-) 2,584,438 981,348
“ [Trainirig and other services rendered 6,475,322 ’ 4,758,999
Miscelfaneous Receipts . ' ' 2,041,619 ) 1,930,678
Liabilities no longer reguired written back : 2,798,939 - 833,536
" |Provision for doubtful debts no longer required written back 1,200,136 - 1,851,884
Bad debts written off in earlier years réalised : - - 120,012
Income from Foreign Exchange(Net ¢f Loss) ' ] - © 2,171,863
| {Income from sale of Mobile Hydraulics Business ' . : 1 7,000,000
I (Refer note 26 of Schedule 12B) _ : e
Dividend income ] : : 1,806,000 1,325,308
Total : : 16,906,454 21,003,628 |
]
\_- E——— T
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YUKEN

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF PROFI T AND L.OSS ACCOUNT

Raw Matarlals, Components and Store consumed SCHEDULE 9
Current Year Pravious Year
RS. Rg,’ Rs.” Rs.
Opening stock 100,122,801 118,293,310
Add: Purchases 806,620,641 532,858,801
Total 906,743,442 651,152,111
Less Closing stock 132,320,313 100,122,801
774,423,129 | 551,029,310
(INCREASE)/DECREASE IN STOCKS SCHEDULE 10
R Current Year Pravious Year
Rs. As. Rs. Rs.
Opening Stocks:
Finished Goods 20,052,699 17,109,851
Excise duty on Opening Stock 3,507,450 2,258,547
Work in Process 36,050,346 39,948,554
: 61,700,455 §9,316,952
Closing Stocks:
Finished Goods 24,224,221 20,052,699
Excise duty on Closing Stock 4,488,357 3,597,450
Work in process 51,547,937 38,050,346
80,260,515 61,700,495
(18,560,020) (2,383,543}
MANUFACTURING, ADMINISTRATION, SELLING & OTHER EXPENSES SCHEDULE 11
’ Current Year Previous Year
Rs. Rs. Rs. ‘Rs.
Salaries, Wages & Bonus (Includes provision for Leave Salary
Rs.3,577,506/-{Rs.1,375,614/) . 182,442,702 125,480,086
Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds 13,042,783 11,244,952
Gratuity to Employees . - 5,543,579 4,956,087
Staff welfare Expenses 8,871,995 10,687,577
Voluntary Retirement Scheme . 7,683,328
Sub-contracting charges 116,696,108 118,306,281
Power and fuel 27,808,252 18,052,022
Rates and Taxes 3,254,183 2,875,265
Excise Duty 845,742 591,776
Exchange Loss {Net of Gain) 3,526,716 -
Loss on Fixed Assets sold {net) 27,881 914,352
Loss on Fixed Assets scrapped 108,657 858,047
Rent 9,485,142 6,865,205
Insurance 1,105,356 923,808
Repairs:
Machinery 12,280,36 10,675,989
Building 6,174,436 3,791,023
Cthers 1,054,123 19,508,925 1,623,702 16,060,714
Freight Transport & Other Charges 38,358,916} : 28,127,379
Legal and Professional charges 21,686,471 19,158,459
Sales Promotion Expenses 5,141,085 3,458,179
Selling Commission 17,946,638 17,413,491
Travelling Expenses 28,549,960 18,982,477
Vehicle Maintenance 5,971,139 4,717,570
Printing,Stationery,Postage & Telephones 10,283,075 7,695,508
Directors Sitting Fee 199,375 270,000
Commission to Directors other than Managing Director 1,610,731 1,110,968
Bad debts and advances written off 5,777,672 3,492,116
Less : Provision released 3,047,017 2,730,655 - 3,492,116
Provision for Doubtful Debts 3,246,406 4,601,828
Provision for Doubtful Advances - 2,035,135
Bank charges 3,906,431 5,851,562
Miscellaneous Expenses 22,797,109, 15,273,849
{Refer note 16 of Schedule 12B)
555,596,103 457,728,032
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l Schedule 12

Significant Accountmg Policies and Notes on Accounts for the year, ended 31st March 2011

A. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. BASISOF ACCOUNTING . .
" The financial statéments have been. prepared on the accrual concept of accounting under the Historical
~ Cost Convention in-accordance with the ‘generally accepted accounting: principles and comply with the

mandatery Accounting Standards in accordance with the relevant prows:ons of The Companles Act, 1956,

2. FIXED ASSETS '

Tangible Assets’

a) Fixed Assets are cepitalis'ed at cost inclusive of taxes, incidental expensés on fréight, installation etc.
and interest on borrowed funds attributable to acquisition of fixed assets for the period upto the date |
such asset is put to use. ' '

b) Fixed Assets taken on financial lease prior to April 1st ,2001 are not cap;tallsed and Iease renta!s are
absorbed in the Profit and Loss Account without reference to usefu! life of the asset while assets
acquired under Hire Purchase are capltahsed :

¢) Depreciation 6n Fixed Assets is provided at the rates specified in Schedule XIV of the Companies Act
1956, under Sétraught Line Method. Depreciation on additions during the year is on pro-rata basis,
based on the date the assets are put o use. Assets costing less than Rs. 5,000/- are fu!fy deprecnated
during the year.

Intangible Assets

a) Technical Know how fee is amortized aver a period of 6 years on pro-rata basis.

b} Cost of Llcense and Implementatuon of Enterpnse Resource Plannmg (ERP) software is amartized
over the estlmated useful life of 5 years. '

¢ Expenses mcurred on research and developments are charged to revenue in the same year. Fixed
assets purchases for research and development purposes are capitalized and depreciated as per the
Company's policy. ' ’

impairment ‘ _ _
Consideration is inen at each Balance ‘Sheet date to-determine whether there is any indication of impair-
ment of the carrying amount of the Company's fixed assets. If any indication exists, an rmpaarment loss is
recogmzed when the carrying amount exceeds greater of net se!hng pnce and value in use.

3. !NVESTMENTS
Investments which are Iong term in nature are stated at cost, and provision for dlmmutlon in value is made
to recogmze a loss, other than temporary, in the va!ue of investments.

4 INVENTORIES .
Inventories are valued as follows _
{i} a) Raw Materials & Components } At lower of cost on Moving Weighted Average

value and net realizable value

(i) a) Material in transit } At lower of cost and net realizable value
b) Work in Process *

{ii} Finished Goods * At lower of cost and riet realizable value

(iv) Tools ' At iower of cost and net realizable value

(* Cost includes cost of material, direct labour and other applicable overheads).

4
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5. CASHFLOW

Cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Accounting Standard -3
on Cash Flow Statements. o '

6. FOREIGNCURRENCY TRANSACTION
Transactions in Foreign Currency are accounted at exchange rates prevailing on the date of Transaction.
Monetary items denominated in foreign currency and forward exchange contracts outstanding as at the
end of the year are re-stated at year end rates. The loss or gain arising on restatement / settlement is
adjusted to the Profit and Loss account.
in case of items which are covered by forward exchange contracts, the difference between the year end
rate and rate on the date of the contract is recognized as exchange difference and the premium paid on
forward contracts is recognized over the life of the contract. Non monetary foreign currency items are
carried at cost.

7. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Short Term Employee Benefits
Short term employee benefits including accumulated compensated absences determined as per
Company's policy/scheme are recognized as expenses based on expected obligation on undiscounted
basis. '
Long Tefm Employee Benefits:
Defined Contribution Plans
The Company has Defined Contribution plans for post employment benefits namely Provident Fund and
Superannuation Fund. Under the Provident Fund Plan, the Company contributes to a Government admin
istered provident fund on behalf of its employees and has no further obligation beyond making its contribution.
The Superannuation Fund constitutes an insured benefit, which is classified as a defined contribution
plan as the Company makes contributions to an insurance company and has no further obligation beyond
making the payment to the insurance company. |
The Company makes contributions to state plans namely Employee’s State Insurance Fund and Employee s
Pension Scheme, 1995 and has no further obligation beyond making the payment to them.

The Company's contributions to _tpg___apo_ye funds are charged to revenue every year.

Defined Benetit Plan .
The Company has a Defined Benefit plan namely Gratuity for all its employees. The liability for the defined
benefit plan of Gratuity is determined on the basis of an actuarial valuation at the year end.

Gratuity Fund is recognized by the income tax authorities and is administered through trustees. The
Company has taken a group gratuity policy with Reliance Life Insurance Company Limited and is funded.
Provision for long term compensated absence has been made on the basis of an actuarial valuation at the year ehd.
Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments and the effects of changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized immediately in the Profit and Loss Account as income or expense.

Termination Benefits:
Compensation paid / payable to employees who have opted for retirement under the Voluntary Retirement
Scheme (VRS) of the Company is amortized over a period of 36 months.

8. REVENUERECOGNITION
Sales are recognized on dispatch of goods when significant risks and rewards of ownership are consid
ered 1o be transferred. Sales returns are recognised as and when ascertained and are reduced from the
sales turnover of the year. Sales are inclusive of excise duty and are net of Sales Tax.

Revenue from Hydraulic Training programme is recognised on completion of the Training program.

—— e - =

42



YUKEN INDIA LIMITED : YUKEN

9. BORROWING COST ' : o ' Wl

Borrowing costs other than that attributable to a qualifying asset are expensed as and when incurred.

10. LEASES
Assets taken on lease where the company acquires substantially the entire risks and rewards incidental
to ownership are classified as finance leases. The amount recorded is the lesser of the present value of
minimum lease rental and other incidental expenses during the lease term or the fair vaiue of the assets
taken on lease. The rental obligations, net of interest charges, are reflected as secured loans. Leases that
do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of oWnersh_i_p are classified as operating leases and
recorded as expense as and when the payments are made over the lease term,

11. EARNING PERSHARE
In determining the earning per share, the Company considers the net-profit after tax. The number of shares
used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period. The number of shares used in computing diluted earning per share comprises the
weighted average shares considered for deriving basic earning per share and also the weighted average
number of equity shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity
shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period unless
issued at a later date

12. INCOME TAX

Current Tax ;

Current tax expense is determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income - tax Act, 1961.
Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives rise to future economic
benefits in the form of adjustment of future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax. ‘
Deferred Tax :

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rate which have been enacted or substan-
tively enacted at the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax expense or benefit is recognized, on timing differ-
ences being the difference between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period
and are capable of reversing in one or more subsequent periods.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty of their realization.
Where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward losses, deferred tax asset is recognized only if
there is virtual certainty of realization of such asset. .

13. PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources wiil be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable
estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on
best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.
Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent assets are neither
recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

B. NOTES ON ACCOUNTS .

1. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account [net of advances
Rs.20,140,257/- (Rs. 1,609,838/-}.] and not provided for is Rs. Nil (Rs. 1,599,196/-).

—— m
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2. Corporate Guarantee give by the Company to Bankers for Yuflow Engineering Pvt Ltd towards Cash Credit
fimit of Rs. 15,000,000/~ , and Non fund based limit of Rs.2,500,000/-. For Coretec Engineering India Pvt

Lid towards Term Loan of Rs. 15,000,000/- and Cash Credit limit of Rs. 2,500,000/~

3. Investments additions/ (deletion) for the year:

Amountin Rs.

Description

31st March 2011

31st March 2010

Hycom Engineering (India) Private Limited

9,413_,300/—

Bourton Consulting (India) Pvt Ltd

370,000/

4. Foreign Currency Exposure :

a) Forward Exchange Contracts, which are not intended for trading or speculative purposes, but for
‘hedge purposes, to establish the amount of reporting currency required or available ai the setllement date

of certain payables and receivables, outstanding as at the year end are given below:

No of Contracts Nature of Amount :
Hedge Currency Cross Currency | Amount (Rs)
Buy/ Sell (USD)
1 Buy usD - Rupees )
{1) Buy usp {3,470,000) Rupees {156,392,900)
1 Buy Usb - Rupees -
{-) Buy uso (i72,616) Rupees (7,779,760}

b) 'Fdreign Currency Exposure, that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or other wise:

(Rs. 5,315,807)

Particulars Amount Amount
(Foreign Currency)
Due From
- Debtors against Export of Goods Rs.9,869,638 USD 222,831

(USD 121,573)

Rs. 446,205 GBP 6,227
(Rs. 12,604) (GBP 188)
Rs.1,350,776 Euro 21,417

(Rs.1,270,105)

(Euro 20980)

Rs.365,559
¢

JPY 667,200
¢)

N
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(Rs.538,983)

Dueto

a) Secured loan Rs.15.748,011 EURO 249,691
(Rs.-) ()

b) Interest on Secured Loan Rs.21,803 EURO 345? _
- {Rs.896,169) (USD 19,661)
¢) Creditors against Im'port of goods.and Rs.48,016,295 UsD 1,072,031
services (inclusive for Capital goods) _ {Hs.38,469,260) (USD 853,545)
Rs.4,383 YEN 8,000
{Rs.5,803,164) (YEN 11,933,300}
Rs 606,800 EURO 9,621
(EURO 8,903)

5. Employee Benefits :

The company has classified various benefits provided to employees as under :-

| Defined Contribution Plans
a. Provident Fuiid
b. Superannuation Fund
c. State Defined Contribution Plans

i. Employers' Contribution to Employee's State Insurance

i Employers’ Contribution: to- Employee’s-Pension Scheme, 1995.
The Company has recognized the following amounts in the Profit and Loss Account-

AmountinRs.

Description 31st March 2011 | 31st March 2010
Employers' Contribution to Provident Fund™ 4,632,665 3,935,196
Employers’ Contribution to Superannuation Fund” 5,699,752 4,290,671
Employers' Contribution to Ehployee's State fnsurance* 439,714 398,434
Employers' Contribution to Employee's Pension Scheme 1995* 2,440,702 2,026,961

* Included in Contribution to provident and other funds {Refer Schedule 11)

11 Defined Benefit Plan

a) Contribution to Gratuity Fund

In accordance with Accounting Standard 15, actuarial valuation has been carried out at Projected Unit Credit

method in respect of the aforesaid defined benefit plan of Gratuity based on the foliowing assumptions :

Description 31st March 2011 | 31st March 2010
Discount Rate 8.10% p.a 8.15% p.a
Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets 7.50% p.a . 7.50% p.a
Salary Escalation Rate _ 5.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a.
Expected Average remaining working lives

of the employees ({Years) 10.71 10.88
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The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation,
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

A) Change in Present Value of Obligation :-

Amount in Rs.

31st March 2011

Description 31st March 2010
Opening Present Vaiue of Obligation 12,011,567 11,761,680
Current Service Cost 1,055,667 1,076,636
Interest on Defined Bengfit Obligation 1,014,314 412,143
Benefits Paid (511,192) {5,606,597)

_ Net Actuarial Losses / (Gains) Recognized in Year 198,932 3,867,705
Past Service Cost 3,867,359 -
Losses / (Gains) on "Curtailments & Settlements” - -
Closing Present Vaiue of Obligations 12,011 ,567

17,636,644

B) Change in the Fair Value of Assets

AmountinRs.

Description 31st March 2011 31st March 2010
Opening Fair Value of Pian Assets 9,849,471 11,055,671
Expected Beturn on Plan Assets 804,583 870,935
Actuarial Gains / (Losses) (211,893) 29,462
Assets Distributed on Settiements - .-
Contributions by Employer 6,096,697 3,500,000 -
Assets Acquired due to Acquisition - -
Exchange Difference on Foreign Plans - -
Benefits Paid (611,192) {5,606,597)
Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets 16,027,666 ‘ 9,849,471

C) Reconciliation of Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation and the Fair Value of plan assets

AmountinRs.

Description 31st March 2011 31st March 2010
Closing Present Value of Funded Obligations (17,636,644) (12,011,567)
Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets 16,027,666 9,849,471
Closing Value of Unfunded Obligations (1,608,978) (2,162,096)
Unrecognized Actuarial {gains) /-losses - -
Unfunded Net Asset/ (Liability) recognized

" in Balance Sheet a ' (2,162,096)

(1,608,978)




YUKEN INDIA LIMITED |

YUKEN

(— D} Expense recognized in the Profit and Loss Account
Amountin Rs.

Description J1st March 2011 31st March 2010
Current Service Cost 1.055,667 1,076,636
Past Service Cost 3,867,359 -
Interest Cost 1,014,311 912,143
Expected Return on Plan Assets (804,583) (870,935)
Actuarial Losses / (Gain) 410,825 3,838,243
Losses / (Gains) on "Curtailments & Settlements" - -
Total Expense recognized in the Profit & Loss Account 5,543,579 4,956,087
E) Major categories of Plan Assets as a percentage of total Plan Assets

Description J1st March 2011 | 31st March 2010
Corporate Bonds 38% 50%
Equity Shares of listed Companies 38% 50%
insurer Managed Funds 24% 0%
F) Expetience Adjustments _

Description 31st March 31st March | 31st March 31st March | 31st March

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Defined Benefit Obligation] 17,234,829 15,108,152 11,761,680 12,011,567 17,636,644
Plan Assets 12,376,464 12,968,271 11,055,671 9,849,471 | 16,027,666
Surplus / (Deficit) {4,858,365) (2,139,881) (706,009) {2,162,086) | (1,608,978)
Exp. Adj. On Plan Liabilied 3,723,851 159,629 (1,229,969) 4,862,522 129,959
Exp. Adj. on Plan Assets|  (413,000) | 140,974 | (1,248,332) 29,462 (211,893)

b) Leave Salary

Assumptions at the Vaiuation Date:

Description

31st March,2011

31st March,2010

Discount Rate

8.10% p.a.

8.15% p.a.

Salary Escalation Rate

5.00% p.a.

5.00% p.a.

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, senior-

ity, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Amountin Rs.

Description

31st March,2011

31st March,2010

Charge in the Profit & Loss account 3,524,718 1,375,614
Amount paid during the year 1,971,827 1,841,312
Liability as at year end 12,118,454 10,565,564

;—-w-——.-m_.—__.—__,____—.____m_‘__/
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The Company has entered into lease agreements for vehicles and office facilities which are cancellable.
The lease payments recognized in the statement of profit and loss account for the year against these
agreements is Rs. 6,160,313 /- (Rs.5, 202,463/-) which has been grouped under ‘Rent’ under Schedule-11.

There are no contingent rents payable.

Earning Per Share :

Amountin Rs.

31st March 2011

3ist March 2010

Profit after taxation

98,030,513

69,333,795

Weighted number of Equity shares

)

3,000,000

3,000,000

Face Value of Share

Rs.10

Rs.10

Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share

(AB)

Rs. 32.68

Rs. 23.11

9. SegmentReport:

| The company's predominant risks and returns are from the segment of Motion, Control & power transmission
business, which constituted over 95% of the company’s revenues for the reporting period. Thus the segment
revenue, segn"%ent result, total carrying amount of segment assets, total amount of segment liabilities, total cost
incurred to acquire segment assets, the total amount of expense incurred for depreciation and amortization-
during the year are all as reflected in the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2011 and as on that
date. Since this being a single business and India the only major geographical segment, constituting over 95%
of the company's revenues for the reporting period, the segment information as per Aecounting Standard 17,

“Segment Reperting*, is not required to be disclosed.

10. Deferred Tax: *

Tax provision has been made in accordance with the requirements under the Accounting Standard 22 "Account-
ing for Taxes on Income" as detailed below:

Amount in Rs.

Deferred tax

Description

- Peferred tax

(asset)/liability

. as at 01.04.10¢

. Current year
charge /
(credit)

(asset) / liability -
as at 31.03.11

Depreciation: book to tax difference

25,451,959

2,316,979

27,768,938

Provision for employee benefits

(4,113,261)

(446,992)

{4,560,253)

Provision for Doubtful debts and advances:

{(2,452,242)

263,068

(2,188,274)

Miscellaneous Expendit&re
(Voluntary Retirement Scheme)

1 (2,979,673)

1,448,230

(1.531,443)

Net

15,906,783

3,582,185

19,488,968

11. Unclaimed Dividend :

The unclaimed dividend of Rs.733,344l— {Rs.725,185/-) represents Rs. 63,195/-relating to the year 2004,
Rs.96,250/- relating to the year 2005, Rs.116,699/- refating to the year 2006, Rs.179,305/- relating to the year
2007, Rs. 200,353/- relating to the year 2008, and Rs.127,542/- relating to the year 2010. No part thereof has
remained unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date they became due for payment requiring
a transfer to the Investor Education and Protection: Fund.
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12. Companies under the same management :

B} of the Companies Act, 1956 as follows, =

Sundry debtors include dues from companies under the same management as defined under section 370(1-

Description 31st March 2011 31st March 2010
Rs. Rs.
Coretec Engineering India Private Limited 7,641,265 . 2,850,954
- Prism- Hydraulics Private Limited 1,674,387 1,673,668
Yuflow Engineering Private Limited 426,674 882,490
Bourton Consulting (India) Pvt L.td 825,741 825,741

section 370(1-B) of the Companies Act, 1956 as follows:

13. Loans and advances include dues from companies under the same management as defined under

Amount in Rs.
Advance to Subsidiaries 31st March 2011 | 31st March 2010
Yuflow Engineering Private Limited - 10,989,621
Maximum amount outstanding d_uring_ the year 15,088,147 16,259,083
Prism Hydraulics Private Limited 664,588 2,527,816
Maximum amount outstanding during the year 2,516,962 2,886,138

14, Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises :

Interest due on the above

Description - 31st March 2011 31st March 2010
. _ Rs . Rs
Principal amount unpaid 3,779,959 4,930,698
' . 73,251 '

70,499

15. Interest expense comprises of :

The above information and that given in current liabilities regarding dues to micro enterprises and small
enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information
available with the Company. This has been relied upon by the. auditors.-
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______ Amount in Rs.
Descriplion 31st March 2011 31st March 2010
On Fixed loans 17,630,924 18,841,641
On others 75,09,320 9,079,458
Total 25,140,244 27,921,099
IR B -

%
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16, Miscellaneous Expenses include:

Auditors Remuneration:

YUKEN

-Amountin Rs.

Description 31ist March 2011 3ist March 2010 |
Audit fees 650,000 500,000
. TaxAudit/ Tax Matters 300,000 300,000
For Certification / Attestation Work - 300,000 200,000
Out of Pocket Expenses and Service Tax 161,925 117,722
Total 1,411,925 1,117,722

17. Computation of Net Profit under section 309 (5) of the Companies Act, 1956 :
Amount in Rs.

Description _ 31st March 2011 | 31st March 2010
| Profit before tax as per Profit and Loss Account 146,612,700 103,649,578
Remuneration to Whole time Directors 10,430,548 7,316,994
Commission to Directors other than Whole time Directors 1,610,731 1,110,968
Directors Sitting Fees 199,375 270,000 . -
~ Loss on Fixed Asset sold (net) 27,881 914,352
" Loss on Fixéd Asset Scrapped 108,657 858,047
Provision for doubtful debts (Net of reversal of
Rs.1,851,884) i 2,046,270 2,749,944
Provision faor doubtful advances - 2,035,135
. Wealth Tax - 36,903 49,830
Total 161,073,065 118,945,848
Less: Income on Sale of Mobile Hydraulics Business ' . - 7,000,000
Net Profit o 161,073,065 111,954,848
Restricted to :
10% of Net Profit for Whole Time Directors 16,107,306 11,195,484
1% of Net Profit for Directors other than Whole Time Directors 1,610,731 1,119,548

*Remuneration excludes charge for gratuity as separate actuarial valuation figures are not available

18. Remuneration to the Whole Time Directors ;

Amount in As.

Description 31st March 2011 31st March 2010 |
Managing | Whole Time | Managing | Whole Time

_Director Director Director Director

Salary --4,150,000 1,538,148 3,256,911 1,019,736

Contribution to Provident and

Superannuation- Fund: 1,120,500 110,747 972,000 113,308
. Monetary Value of Perquisite - . 616,192 728,000 - 434,533 630,5_0‘6—"

Leave salary for the year 350,000 - 300,000 -

Commission 1,816,961 - 590,000 -

Total * 8,053,653 2,376,895 5,553,444 1,763,550

*Remuneration excludes charge for gratuity as separate actuarial valuation figures are not available.
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(;. Particulars in respect of goods manufactured:

Classof Goods |. . Unitof | Licensed Installed Total
o foet QY Capacity Capacity Praduction
1 Hydrauﬁc pumps, valves, Accumulators, Nos. - NA 395,400@ 363,399
Cylinders, power units and. Others. o (294,600)@ (263,957) {
2| Cast fron Castings and Alloyed Iron ‘ 2,400 @ 1,869**
' Castings o MT NA {1,200)@ (1,132)*
@ a) As certified by the Management and relied upon .by the Auditors being technical matter. . L

b) Power units are ma_hufactu_red against specific customer orders.

** including- 1,206 MT (876 M.T) for own consumption.
20. Particulars in respect of Stocks and Sales of Finished Products :

Ciassof |unitl  Opening Stock Closing Stock Sales
Goods : : _ : -
# Qty | ValueinRs{ Qty | ValueinRs Qty Value inRs
1 { Hydrautic Pumps{.
Valves
Accumulators .
Cylinders 8,042 | 23,617,222 8,928| 28,712,579] 362,513 | 1,585,203,038**
Power Units And | No| 7,273) {(19,116,009) |. (8,042)(23,617,222) | (263,188) |(1,219,005,700)**
Others .
2 | Cast Iron Castings{ M.T;  0.20 32927 NIL NIL| 663.20 59,939,048
and Alloyed Iron (4 )} | (252389) (0.20) {32,927)| (259.80) (20,322,313)
Castings ' :
** Net of sale returns Rs.24,065,076 /- {Rs. 25,630,156/-)
Closing stock includes Excise Duty of Rs:-4,488,357-/--(Rs. 3,597,450/-).

21. Raw Materials and Components and Stores consumed :

Unit of Qty Qty Value Rs
i) | Steel items , 1 kG 328,800 28,767,498
' (300,422) (23,484,184)
i} | Castings , o S OKG 1,332,347 67,702,416
. (1,108,337) 1(49,635,024)
i} | Imported Raw materials and - ' - 190,492,644
Components (numerous to list) - | - (1 78,369,206)
W) | Others - N 467,332,082
{numerous to Eist)__ oo - (287,223,070)
‘ v) | Consumable Stores & Spares - - 20,128,489
o - (12,317,826)
Total - | 774,423,129
{551,029.310)
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22, Composition of Raw Materials, Components and Stores consumed :

Imported - - - indigenous Total Rs.

Per- ' Per- , Per-
Rs. " cent- Rs. cent- Rs. 1 cent

age age age

Raw Materials " 190,492,644 25 563,801,996 75 754,294,640 100

And components| (178,369,206 ) (33) (360,342,278) t (67) (538,711,484 ) { (100)

Consumable ) ) 20,128,489 | 100 20,128,489 { 100
Stores and Spares ) ) (12,317,826) | (100) (12,317,826) | (100)

23. Value of Imports Calculated on CIF basis :

Description S 31st March 2011 31st March 2010
¢ ' I Rs. Rs. _
Raw Materials and Components 193,682,136 156,185,098
Capital Goods _ 26,049,168 228,657

24.. Expenditure in Foreign Cu;rgyqu_gi_p account of : (On Payment basis) : -

Description ‘ 31st March 2011 31st March 2010
As. " Rs.
Brand Fee 4,515,535 3,568,170
Interest 4,793,586 7,511,068
Others - - 7,191,942 6,005,878

25. Remittances in foreign currencies on account of dividends :

Description o 31stMarch 2011 | 31st March 2010
Number of Non-resident shareholders 1 1
Number of equity shares on which dividend paid 1,200,000 -
Dividend paid (Rs) 3,000,000 -
Year to which the dividend relates ' 2010 -

26. Earningin Foreign Currency (On Realisation Basis) : '

Description : 31st March 2011 31st March 2010

: Rs. Rs.
Hydraulic Training 666,029 23,778
Export Sales | 8,678,514 20,936,227
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27. Sale of mobile Hydraullcs business:

The Company has entered into a shareholders' agreement dated January 20 2010 with a party, for sale
of its mobile hydraulics business. As a Gonsideration for this transfer the company received a total
amount of Rs. 9,413,300, out of which Rs. 7,000,000 is towards transfer of Know-how, 1P rights, cus
tomer/vendor contracts etc. (goodwill) and balance of Rs. 2,413,300 towards book value of fixed assets
sold. The total purchase consideration receivable has been shown under "Sundry Debtors™ in Schedule
6 and the amount receivable towards goodwill has been shown under "Miscellaneous Income” in Sched
ule 9 of the financial statements in the previous year. This year company has been allotted 941,330

shares of Rs.10 each at par.. .

The mobile Hydraulics activity does not constitute a major line of business of the Company.

28. The Company has entered into an arrangement for services with a Private Limited Company in which a
Director is interested and paid an advance of Rs.393,116/~. The Company has applied for requisite

approval to the appropriate Authority.

29. Figures relating to previous year have been reclassified wherever necessary to conform to current year
classification. Figures in brackets re!ate to previous year. .

SIGNATURES TO SCHEDULES1TO 12
For and on behalf of the Board

V. Balaji Bhat R. Srinivasan C. P. Rangachar
Director o Director Managing Director
Date: 14h May,2011.
H M Narasinga Rao

Place: Bangaiore

Chief Financial officer
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C. BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPANY'S

GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE:
1 Registration No: [3017 |~ " . .. State Code:| 08 |

Balance Sheet date 31/03/2011-

II. Capital raised dufing the y‘_;_ear:_‘ .

Public Issue = T NIl

Bonus issue ="Nil
Rights Issue -+ Nit
. Private Placement . = -No . . y
I, Position of Mobilization and Deployment of funds : (Rs in Lakhs) |
Total Liabilities 7,687
~TotalAssets . . . ... ... . . .7687
Source of Funds

Paid up Capital

Reserves &¥Surpius
Peferred Tax Liability
Secured Loans

Unsecured Loans .

Applicationof Funds

Net Fixed Assets
Net Current Assets

Investments - - e

IV Performance of Company lakhs)
Turnover ) 15,084
Total Expenditure ' 13,618
Profit Before Tax 1,466
Profit After Tax 980
Earning per Share in Rs. . 32.68

Dividend (Including Dividend Tax) 87

J
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4
V. Generic Name of Three Principal Products/Servi_ces of Company ( as per Monetary Terms);
item Code No (ITC Code) 84812000
Product Description i Hydraulic Valves
ltem Code No {ITC Code) ' 84131199
Product Description ~ Hydraulic Pumps
ltem Code No (ITC Code) 84122990
Product Description Hydraulic Systems

For and on behalf of the Board

V. Balaji Bhat R. Srinivasan C. P.Rangachar
Director Director Managing Director
Date: 14h May,2011.#
Place: Bangalore _ H M Narasinga Rao

Chief Financial officer
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AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF YUKEN INDIA LIMITED

1.

We have audited the attached Consolidated Balance Sheet of YUKEN INDIA LIMITED ("the
Company"), its subsidiaries (the Company, its subsidiaries constitute "the Group”) as at March 31,
2011 the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement of the
Group for the year ended on that date, both annexed thereto. The Consolidated Financial Statements
include investments in associates accounted on the equity method in accordance with Accounting
Standard 23 (Accounting for Investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements) as
notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company's Management and have been prepared on the basis of the
separate financial statements and other financial information regarding components. Qur responsibility
is to express an opinion on these Consolidated Financial Statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generaliy accepted in India.
Those Standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatements. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates
made by the Management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We did not’audit the financial statements of certain subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect
total assets of Rs. 91,272,376 as at March 31, 2011, total revenues of Rs. 86,468,916 and net cash
outilows amounting to Rs. 7,122,748 and an associates whose financial statements reflect the
group's share of losses net, of Rs. 181,151 for the year ended on that date as considered in the
Consolidated Financial Statemerits. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors
whose reports have been furnished to us and our opinion in so far as it relates to the amounts
included in respect of these Subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

We report that the Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared by the Company in
accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard 21 (Consolidated Financial Statements),
Accounting Standard 23 (Accounting for Investment in Associates in Consolidated Financial
Statements) as notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. .
Based on our audit and on consideration of the separate audit reports on individual financial statements
of the Company, its aforesaid subsidiaries and associates and to the best of our information and
according to the explanat:ons given to us, in our opinion, the Consolidated Financial Statements.
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

* (i) inthe case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet of the state of affairs of the Group as at March

31,2011;

(i) in the case of the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account of the proflt of the Group for the year
ended on that date and

(iii) in the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement of the cash flows of the Group for the year
ended on that date ‘

For DELOITI'E HASKINS & SELLS
Charterad Accountants
Registration No. 00807258

"8. Ganesh
Partner
M. No.204108

Place : Bangalore
Date :May 14, 2011
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Place :Bangalore
Date : 14th May,2011
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" CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2011
PARTICULARS SCH NO AS AT 31/03/2011 AS AT 31/03/2010
| SOURCES OF FUNDS -
1. Share holders’ Funds:®
".a. Share Capital 1 30,000,000 30,000,000
b. Reserves and Surplus 2 447,499,578 347,891,589
’ 477,499,578 377,891,589
2. Minority interest 7,371,959 6,027,414
3. Loan Funds 3 359,974,083 228,494,395
4. Deferred Tax Liability(Net) 22,581,860 18,544,050
Total 867,427,480 630,957,448
It APPLICATION OF FUNDS
1. Fixed Assets
a. Gross Biock _ 4 510,178,599 478,239,136
b. Less: Accumulated Depreciation / ‘
impairment 207,639,626 197,699,275
¢. Net Block 302,538,973 280,539,861
d. Capital Work in Progress 107,146,305 4,463,361
409,685,278 285,003,222
2. Goodwill arising on%:onsolldalion 1,619,452 1,619,452
3. Investment 5 49,507,434 34,024,014
4. Current Assets, Loans and Advances:
a) Inventories ' 6 250,657,779 199,047,794
b) Sundry Debtors ‘ 462,003,891 392,231,083
¢} Cash and Bank Balances 27,277,575 33,340,290
d) Loans and Advances 64,276,436 51,317,844
‘ _ ) 804,215,681 675,937,011
Less: Current Liabilities and Provisions 7
a) Liabllities 360,517,728 330,606,697
b) Provisions 37,087,293 35,028,862
: 397,605,021 365,635,559
Net Current Assets 406,610,660 [ 310,301,452
5. Miscellaneous Expendlture‘ 8 4,656 9,308
Total b 867,427,480 630,957,448
Significant Accounting policies and Notes on Accounts 13
The schedules referred to above form an integral part‘of the Balance sheet
In terms of our report attached ' ' I
for Deloitte Haskins & Sells For and on behalf of Board
Chartered Accountants ’
S. Ganesh _ V. Balaji Bhat R. Srinivasan . C P Rangachar
Partner Director Managing Director

Director

HM Narasinga Rao
Chief Financiai Officer

-
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCGH 2011
PARTICULARS SCH NO CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
INCOME
Gross Sales 1,747,865,879 1,302,750,201
Less: Excise Duty 162,967,886 102,333,250
Net Sales 1,584,897,993 1,200,416,951
Other Income 9 15,928,131 23,104,218 L
1,600,826,124 1,223,521,169
EXPENDITURE )
Raw Materials, Components and Stores consumed. 10 784,653,437 568,614,810
(Increase)/ Dacrease in Stock 11 {14,864,248) {10,385,345) L
Manufacturing, Administration, selling and other expenses 12 622,878,542 493,269,856
Interest Coe . T pre— 27,026,922 25,483,318
Depreciation / Amortisation 28,297,004 28,000,961
1,447,991,657 1,108,983,600
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR BEFORE TAX 152,834,467 114,537,569
Provision for Taxation-
- Current tax 47,037,000 37,135,000
- Excess Provision for Income Tax {39,445) -
- Deferred tax 4,037,810 (1,890,744}
- Fringe Benefit Tax - 620
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR BEFORE MINORITY INTEREST /
EQUITY IN EARNINGS OF ASSOCIATE 101,799,102 79,292,693
Less: Minority Interest 1,344,545 (728,919)
Add: Equity in eanings of Associates 7,870,120 3,727,018
N 108,324,677 82,290,792
Add: Surplus Brought Forward
from previous year 308,038,745 241,493,703
Amount available for appropriation 416,363,422 323,784,495
Appropriations:
General Reserve 13,000,000 7,000,000
Proposed Dividend 7,500,000 7,500,000
Tax on Dividend 1,216,688 1,245,750
Surplus Carrled forward 394,646,734 308,038,745
Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share (Face value of equity
share of Rs.10/- each) ‘ 36.11 27.43
Aggregate number of shares used for
Computing Basic & Diluted EPS 3,000,000 3,000,000
Significant Accouriting policies and Notes on Accounts. ... 13
The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Profit & Loss a’c.
In terms of our report attached
for Deloitte Haskins & Sells : N For and on behalf of Board
Chartered Accountants
S. Ganesh V. Balaji Bhat R. Srinivasan C P Rangachar
Partner Director Director Managing Director
Place :Bangalore H M Naraslitga Rao
Date : 14th May, 2011 Chief Finangial Officer
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT. FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2011
i YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
PAHTI(.:ULARS 31ST MARCH "11 31ST MARCH "10
A.CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING AGIIVITIES ¢
NET PROFITS BEFORE TAX 152,834,467 114,537,569
ADJUSTMENTS FOR:
DEPRECIATION 28,297,004 28,000,961
LOSS ON SALE / SCRAP OF ASSETS 140,690 1,918,515
INTEREST EXPENSE 27,026,922 29,483,318
PRELIMINARY & PRE OPERATIVE EXPENSES WRITTEN OFF 4,652 4,652
PROFIT ON SALE LONG TERM INVESTMENTS - (2,713,797)
AMORTISATION OF TERMINATION BENEFITS - VRS , - 7,683,328
. LIABILITIES NO LONGER REQUIRED WRITTEN BACK {3,029,871) -
BAD DEBTS WRITTEN OFF - 4,162,316 4,604,464
PROVISION FOR DOUBTFUL DEBTS (NET) 1,034,388 2,749,944
PROVISION FOR DOUBTFUL ADVANCES - 2,035,135
UNREALISED EXCHANGE DIFFERENCE (NET) - {131,090)
INTEREST INCOME (2,824,582) {1,250,208)
DIVIDEND INCOME (6,000) __{7,500)
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 207,629,966 186,910,290
" ADJUSTMENTS FOR {INGREASE)/ DECREASE IN:
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (77,604,647) (59,722,134)
LOANS AND ADVANCES (6,223,125) 5,283,551
INVENTORIES {51,609,985) 3,268,098
TRADE PAYABLES & PROVISIONS 34,734,813 128,801,637
CHANGE IN CASH CREDIT . {689,579)
CASH GENERATED FROM CPERATIONS: 107,527,042 263,851,863
INTEREST PAID 4 . 23,331
DIRECT TAX PAID ’ 52,671,695 33,275,392
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 54,855,347 230,553,140
EXTRA ORDINARY ITEMS / PRIOR YEAR ITEMS ‘ - -
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 54,855,347 230,553,140
B.CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
DIVIDEND INCOME 1,806,000 7,500
. PURCHASE OF FIXED ASSETS {158,614,408) (25,922,761}
SALE OF FIXED ASSETS 5,494,658 23,389,043
‘PURCHASE OF INVESTMENTS {9,413,300) -
INTEREST RECEIVED 2,636,843 1,250,209
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES {158,090,207)]. {1,276,009)
C. CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
PROCEEDS FROM BORROWINGS 237,471,090 138,083,915
REPAYMENT OF BORROWINGS (105,669,891) (330,344,661)
DIVIDEND PAID {8,687,591) (29,126)
INTEREST PAID (27,005,121) (29,985,835)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES 96,108,387 (222,275,707)
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH-AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - (7,126,373 7,001,424
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (OPENING BALANCE) 33,340,290 26,374,945
ADD/LESS) : UNREASLISED EXCHANGE (GAIN} / LOSS 450,751 414,672
. 43,791,041 26,769,617
GASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CLOSING BALANCE) 27,277,575 33,340,290
ADD/(LESS): UNREALISED EXCHANGE {GAINYLOSS (612,907} 450,751
) ] - 26,664,668 33,791,041

Signl]iﬁant Accounting policies and Notes on Accounts 13

The schedule referred 1o above form an integral part of the cash flow statement.

Cash and Cash equivalents include Cash and Bank balances as per Balance Sheet have bean considered as balance with Scheduled Banks
on dividend account Rs. 783,344/~ {Rs. 725,185/-) and balance in Margin Money deposit account of Rs.5,871,790 (Rs. 2,570,200/-) which are

available for restricted use by the Company

In terms of cur report attached

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

5. Ganesh
Parner

Place :Bangalore
Date : 14th May,2011

For and on behalf of Board

R. Srinivasan
Director

V. Balajl Bhat
Director

)
—

Managing Director

H M Narasinga Rao
Chief Financial Officer

C P Rangachar
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CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULES
SHARE CAPITAL SCHEDULE 1
PARTICULARS . AS AT 31/03/2011 AS AT 31/03/2010 |
Rs. Rs.
AUTHORISED
6,000,000 {6,000,000) Equity
Shares of Rs.10/- each 60,000,000 60,000,000
ISSUED SUBSCRIBED AND PAID up
3,000,000 (3,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- .
each fully paid up 30,000,000 30,000,000
Total . 30,000,000 30,000,000
RESERVES AND SURPLUS SCHEDULE 2
PARTICULARS AS AT 31!03/20'_!1 AS AT 31/03/2010
’ As. Rs.
Capital Reserve ‘
Arising on account of consolidation of Subsidiary 1,534,580 - 1,534,580
Arising from investment in Associate 2,060,429 2,060,429
General Reserve - ‘
As per Last Balance Sheet 36,257,835 29,257,835
Add : Transfer fram Profit & Loss Account 13,000,000 7,000,000
- 52,852,844 39,852,844
Surplus as shown in the Profit & Loss Account 394,646,734 308,038,745
Total . 447,499,578 347,891,589
LOAN FUNDS ‘ SCHEDULE 3
PARTICULARS : AS AT 31/03/2011 AS AT 31/03/2010
Rs. Rs.
SECURED LOANS:
Term Loan :
From Bank 285,608,440 126,793,227
From Others 1,036,026 2,279,490
Cash Credit Account- From Bank ' - 17,133,030 - 20,612,131
Working Capital Demand Loan-From Bank ' 2,477,241 : 46,243,565
_ ] e e e - 306,254 737 795,928.413]
UNSECURED LOANS:
Other Loan from Bank _ 51,491,181 12,565,982
Short Term Loan from Bank ) - 20,000,000
From Others . o 2,228,165 -
' ' ' 53,719,346 32,565,982
A Total ' - 359,974,083 228,494,395
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INVESTMENTS SCHEDULE 5
PARTICULARS AS AT 31/03/2011 AS AT 31/03/2010

Rs. Rs.
Sai India Limited
360,000 (360,000) Fully paid equity shares of Rs 10/~ each.
{160,000 (equity sh)ares ifp Rs. 13/— Zach received as bonus shares) 39,869,089 33,617,818
Bourton Consulting India Pvi Ltd
37,000{Nil)Fully paid equity shares of Rs.10/-each ' 175,045 356,196
Hycom Engineering (India) Private Limited
941,330 (Nil} Fully paid equity sharres”of Bs.1 0/- eaah 9,413,300 -
The Shamrao Vittal Co-operative BankLtd =~
2,000 (2,000 Fully paid equity shares of Rs-25/- each 50,000 50,000
Total 49,507,434 34,024,014
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES SCHEDULE 6
PARTICULARS AS AT 31!03/2011 AS AT 31/03/2010
Rs. Rs.
a) INVENTORIES:
Tools ' 6,049,728 5,708,195
Raw Materials & Components 153,883,908 118,099,825
Work in Progress | 57,910,556 47,008,961
Finished Goods 29,193,350 25,230,698
Raw Material in transit 3,620,237 3,000,115
Sub-Total 250,657,779 199,047,794
b) SUNDRY DEBTORS
Unsecured debtors _ 468,591,113 397,783,917
Less: Provision for doubtful debts 6,587,222 5,552,834
Sub-Total 462,003,891 392,231,083
¢) CASH & BANK BALANCES: :
Cash & Cheques On Hand 3,459,377 495,230
Balances with Scheduled Banks: :
On Current Account 14,374,110 27,235,961
On Margin Money Deposit Account 6,570,531 2,944,212
On Unclaimed Dividend 783,344 725,185
Fixed deposits . e s 2,090,213 1’939’702
' Sub-Total 27,271,575 33,340,290
d) LOANS & ADVANCES _
Unsecured and considered good:
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for
value to be received 34,791,511 31,069,126
Less Provision for doubtful Advances 625,500 2,035,135
: : 34,166,011 29,033,991
Deposit with Excise Authorities 2,368,225 1,886,352
Deposit Cthers 8,896,704 8,089,733
income Tax :
Advance Tax 77,716,120 25,414,356
Less: Provision for tax 59,260,159 14,260,159
18,455,961 11,154,197
Fringe Benefit Tax : : :
Advance Tax 2,689,535 3,453,571
Less: Provision for tax 2,300,600 2,300,000
389,535 1,153,571
Sub-Total 64,276,436 51,317,844
Total 804,215,681 675,937,011
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CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULES
CURRENT LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS , SCHEDULE 7
PARTICULARS AS AT %1 slf)3;’2i)‘t 1 AS AT :;1 s;’03.’201 0
a) CURRENT LIABILITIES
Sundry Creditors : ‘
Due to Micro and Smalt Enterprises 11,507,167 4,930,698
Dues to Others 334,315,546 314,627,005
Other Statutory Liabilities 10,462,175 8,372,155
Due to Directors 3,427,692 1,949,317
Unclaimed Dividend 783,344 725,185
Interest accrued but not due on loans 21,803 2,337
Sub-Total 360,517,728 330,606,697
b) PROVISIONS:
Income Tax :
Provision for tax 154,737,818 154,150,000
less: Advance tax 142,005,603 142,005,603
12,732,215 12,144,397
Fringe Benefit Tax : ‘
Provision for tax 9,701,000 9,701,000
less: Advance tax 9,405,650 9,405,660
s 295,340 295,340
Gratuity 3,042,196 3,085,411
Leave Salary 12,300,854 10,747,964
Proposed Dividend 7,500,000 7,500,000
Tax on Proposed Dividend 1,216,688 1,245,750
Sub-Total - 37,087,293 35,028,862
Total 397,605,021 365,635,559
MISCELLANEQUS EXPENDITURE
{To the extent not written off or adjusted) SCHEDULE &
PARTICULARS AS AT :1;(13/2011 AS AT :‘I s.lf()3l2t'.l“10
Preliminary expenses 4,656 9,308
Total 4,656 9,308
OTHER INCOME SCHEDULE 9
PARTICULARS Current Year Previous Year
) Rs. Rs.
OTHER INCOME '
Interest Income on Margin Money Deposit and others
(Tax deducted at sourcg Rs.20,4!69/-(pﬂs.38,979/-) 2,634,582 1,250,209
Training and QOther Services rendered 6,726,144 4,788,999
Miscellaneous Receipts 2,131,398 2,196,288
Reversal of Provision/ Liabilites no longer required 3,029,871 -
Provision for doubtful debts no longer required written back 1,200,136 1,851,884
Bad debts written off realised - - 120,012
Liabilities no longer required written back - 1,012,947
Exchange gain (Net) - 2,162,582
Profit on sale of Investment in Subsidiary - 2,713,797
Dividend Income 6,000 7,500
Profit on sale of Mobile Hydraulics Business C 7,000,000
Total 15,928,131 23,104,218
o S /
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CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULES ] .
RAW MATERIALS, COMPONENTS AND STORES CONSUMED ' SCHEDULE 10
PARTICULARS o Curn;nst Year Previ;uss Year
Opening Stock 123,711,621 138,588,370
Add: Purchases 820,810,083 553,834,460
Total 944,521,704 692,422,830
Less Closing stock 159,868,267 123,808,020
Total 784,653,437 568,614,810
(INCREASE) BECREASE IN STOCKS SCHEDULE 11
PARTICULARS : i Current Year Previous Year
Rs. Rs.
Opening Stock
Finished Goods 20,546,174 17,681,613
Excise Duty on Opening stock 3,648,278 2,330,415
Work in Process 48,045,206 41,842,286
: 72,239,658 61,854,314
Closing Stock
Finished Goods 24,704,993 21,582,419
Excise Duty on Closing stock 4,488,357 3,648,279
Work in Process 57,910,556 47,008,961
87,103,906 72,239,659
Total (14,864,248) (10,385,345)
MANUFACTURING, ADMINISTRATION, SELLING & OTHER EXPENSES SCHEDULE 12
PARTICULARS Current Year Previous Year
: Rs. Rs.
Salaries, Wages & Bonus (Includes grovision for Leave Salary ,
Rs.3,577,506/-(Rs.1,375,614/) 199,957,968 139,660,703
Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds 15,181,481 12,146,712
Gratuity to Employees 6,510,540 5,316,006
Staff welfare Expenses 9,769,280 11,378,423
Voluntary Retirement scheme - 7,683,328
Subcontract charges 139,697,203 118,306,281
Power and fual" 29,182,170 19,037,167
Rates and Taxes 3,689,407 3,261,483
Excise/Custom Duty 1,034,537 785,605
Exchange Loss 4,038,578 -
Rent 10,688,034 7,879,091
Insurance 1,329,918 1,028,082
Repairs:
Machinery 13,802,239 11,809,577
Building 6,940,365 4,537,027
QOthers 2,769,305 3,499,810
Freight Transport & Other Charges 40,876,491 31,318,360
Sales Promotion Expenses 7,623,862 4,986,083
Selling Commission 18,221,059 17,961,341
Traveling Expenses 29,662,781 20,480,304
Vehicle Maintenance 6,632,895 5,285,408
Printing,Stationery,Postage and Telephones 11,511,232 8,934,638 |
Directors Sitting Fee 199,375 270,000
Commission to Directors other than Managing Director 3,231,891 1,110,968
Provision for doubtful debts 3,246,406 4,601,828
Provision for doubtful advances - 2,035,135
Bad debts/Advances written off (net) 3,150,434 4,604,464
Bank charges 4,556,934 6,243,008
Lagal and Professional charges 23,931,686 20,683,532
Loss on Asset sold / scrapped 140,690 1,913,515
Preliminary Expenses Written-Off 4,652 4,652
Miscellaneous Expenses 25,297,129 16,507,325 |
Total 622,878,542 493,269,856

l




YUKEN INDIA LIMITED _ YUKEN
7~ B

Schedule 13

Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts on Consoclidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st
March 2011

A ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION :

a) Preparation of Accounts. - -

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Accounting Standard 21 "Consoli
dated Financial Statements” and Accounting Standard 23 - "Accounting for Investment in Associates in
Consolidated Financial Statements" and comply with the relevant provisions of The Companies Act, 1956.

b) Principles of Consolidation

The Consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Yuken India Ltd (the Holding
Company) and its Subsadlanes and Associates, together referred to as "the Group”. The Financial State
ments of the entmes in the Group used in the consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date as of
the Holding Company, i.e. March 31, 2011.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the following basis:

a. The Financial Statements of the Company and its Subsidiary Companies have been consclidated on a
line by line basis by adding together like items of assets, liabilities, income and expense. The intra-group
balances, intra-group transactions and unrealized profits or losses have been eliminated fully.

b.  The excess of cost to the Company of its investments in the subsidiary companies over its share of the
equity of the subsidiary companies, at the détes on which the investments in the subsidiary companies
were made, is recognized as 'goodwill", being an asset in the Consolidated Financial Statements. Where
the share of the equity in the subsidiary companieé as on the date of investment is in excess of cost of
investment of the Company, it is recognized as 'Capital Reserve" and shown under the head 'Reserves &
Surplus’,

¢.  Minority interest in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries consists of the amount of equity attributable
to the minority shareholders at the dates on which investments are made by the Company in the subsid
iary companies and further movements in their share in the equity, subsequent to the dates of investments
as stated above.

d. Investment in Associates has been accounted under the equity method as per Accounting Standard -23,

Accounting for investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements,
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7 .
¢) Companies includedin Consolidation
Country of Incorporation Ownership Proportion
31.03.2011 31.03.2010
i. Subsidiary
Yuflow Engineering Pvt. Ltd INDIA 100% 100%
Coretec Engineering India Pvt. Ltd{ ——  INDIA— 77% ' 77%
Prism Hydraulics Pvt. Lid INDIA 60% 60%
il. Associate
l Sai India Limited INDIA 40% 40%
Bourton Consuiting (india} Pvt Ltd INDIA 29.31% 30.83%

2. INCOME/EXPENDITURE:

All income and expenditure are accounted for on accrual basis.
3. FIXEDASSETS:
Tangible Assets L

a) Fixed Assets are capitalised at cost inclusive of taxes, incidental expenses on freight, installation etc.
and interest on borrowed funds attributable to acquisition of fixed assets for the period up to the date

1 on which such asset is put fo use.

b) Fixed Assets taken on financial iease prior to April 1st, 2001 are not capitalised and lease rentals are
absorbed in the Profit and Loss Account without reference to useful life of the Asset, while Assets -
acquired under Hire Purchase are capitalised. '

¢) Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided at the rates specified in Schedule XIV of the Companies Act L
1956, under Straight Line Method. Depreciation on additions during the year is on pro-rata basis,
based on the date the assets are put to use. Asset costing less than Rs. 5,000/ are fully depreciated
during the year.

d) In Sai India Limited, an Associate, depreciation is provided on Written Down Value Method.

Intangible Asset

a) Technical Know how fee is amortized over a period of 6 years on pro rata basis.

b} Cost of License and Implementation of Enterprise Resource Pianning software is amortized over

the estimated useful life of 5 years.

¢} Expenses incurred on research and developmenfs are charged to revenue in the same year. Fixed
assets purchased for research and development purposes are capitalized and depreciated as per

the Company's policy.

70



YUKEN INDIA LIMITED ' YUKEN

o _ 3
[( ln‘ipairment

Consideration is given at each Balance Sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment
of the carrying amount of the Company's fixed assets. If any indication exists, an impairment loss is recog-

nized when the carrying amount exceeds greater of net selling price and value in use.
4. INVESTMENTS:

Investments which are long term in nature are stated at cost and provision for diminution in value is
made to recognize a loss, other than temporary, in-the-value-of investments.

5. INVENTORIES: = |
| Inventories are vaiued as follows

(i) a)Raw Materials & Components} At lower of cost on Weighted Moving Average value
and net realizable value

4(ii) a) Material in transit ' } At lower of cost and net realizable value
b) Work'in Process * o _ |
(i} Finished Goods * At lower of cost and net realizable value |
l (iv) Tools At lower of cost and net realizable value

(* Cost includes cost of material, direct labour, and other applicable overheads).
Raw material and componenis, are valued on First in First out basis in all the Subsidiary Companies.'

6. CASHFLOW:

Cash flow statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Accounting
Standard -3 on cash flow statements. -

7. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTION:

" Transactions in Foreign. Currency are accounted at exchange rates prevailing on the date of Transaction.
'Mon'etary items denominated in foreign currency and forward exchange contracts outstanding as at the
' end of the year are re-stated at year end rates. The loss or gain arising on restatement / settlement is |}
adjusted to the Profit and Loss account.

In case of items which are covered by,forward'exchange contracts, the difference between the year end
rate and rate on the date of the contract is recognized as exchange difference and the premium paid on
forward contracts-is recognized over the life of the contract. Non monetary foreign currency items are

carried at cost.

71



YUKEN INDIA LIMITED YUKEN

W& EMPLOYEE BENEFITS ;
Short Term Employee Benefits :

Short term employee benefits. including- accumulated compensated absences determined as per Company's
policy/scheme are recognized as expenses based on expected obligation on undiscounted basis.

Long Term Employee Benefits :

Defined Contribution Plans

The Company has Defined Contribution pians for post.employment benefits namely Provident Fund and
\ Superannuation Fund. Under the Provident Fund Plan, the Company contributes to a Government adminis-
tered provident fund on behalf of its employees and has no fuither obligation beyond making its contribution.

i The Superannuation Fund constitutes an insured benefit, which is classified as a defined contribution plan
' as the Company makes contributions to an insurance company and has no further obligation beyond
making the payment to the insurance company.

The Company makes contributions to state plans namely Employee's State insurance Fund and Employee's
Pension Scheme 1995 and has no further obligation beyond making the payment to them.

The Company's contributions to the above funds are charged to revenue every year.

Defined Benefit Plan

The Company has a Defined Benefit plan namely Gratuity for all its employees. The liability for the defined
benefit plan of Gratuity is determined on the basis of an actuarial valuation at the year end. Gratuity Fund
is recognized by the income tax authorities and is administered through trustees, The Company has taken
a group gratuity policy with Reliance Life Insurance Company Limited and is funded. ‘

Provision for long term compensated absence has been made on the basis of an actuarial valuation at
the year end.

Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments and the effects of changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized immediately in the Profit and Loss Account as income or expense,

Termination Benefits:

Compensation paid / payable to employees who have opted for retirement under the Voluntary Retirement
Scheme (VRS) of the Company is amortized over a period of 36 months.

9. REVENUERECOGNITION::

Sales are recognized on dispatch of goods when significant risks and rewards of ownership are consid-
ered to be transferred. Sales returns are recognized as and when ascertained and are reduced from the
sales turnover of the year. Sales are inclusive of excise duty and are net of Sales Tax.

Re'venue from Hydraulic Training program is recognized on completion of the Training program.

10. BORROWING COST:
Borrowing costs other than that altributable to a qualifying asset are expensed as and when incurred.

E---—--—-—--...__._______
- — e —————
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11.

12,

13.

" Deferred Tax assets are recognized only to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty of their reairzatlon

14.

15.

loans. Leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as

‘weighted average shares considered for deriving basic earning per share and aiso. the weighted average
- number of equity. shares that could have been issued.on the conversion .of all-dilutive potential equity

~ Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rate which have been enacted or substan-

_Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent assets are neither

LEASES: : .
Assets taken on lease where the company acquires substantiaily the entire nsks and rewards. tncuden~
tal to ownership are classified as finance leases. The amount recorded is the lesser of the present
value of minimum lease rental and other incidental expenses during the lease term or the fair value of
the assets taken on lease. The rental obligations, net of interest charges, are reflected as seciited

operating leases. and recorded as expense as and when the payments are made

EARNING PER SHARE : _ : L ‘

In determining the earning per share the Company considers the net proftt after tax. The nurnber of shares
used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted average number of shares outstandlng
during the period. The number of shares used in computing diluted eaming per-share comprises the

shares. Diluttve potenttal equtty shares are deemed converted as of the begmmng of the penod unless

_|ssued at a fater date
'INCOME TAX:

Current Tax:

Current tax expense is determlned in accordance with the provisions of the !ncome tax Act, 1961, Mlm-
mum alternate tax (MAT) patd in accordance with the tax laws, whrch gives rise to future economic benefits
in the form of ad]ustment of future income tax liability, is considered as an. asset if there is convincing
evidence that the Company wall pay normat income tax. :

Deferred 'I‘ax

tively enacted at the Baldnce Sheet date. Deferred tax expense or benefit is recogmzed timing differences
being the dtfference between taxable income- and accounting income that ortglnate |n one period and as
capable of reverslng in oné or more subsequent periods. :

Where there is unabsorbed depreciation and carried forward !osses, deferred tax asset is recogmzed only
if there-is virtual certalnty of realization of such asset. : i
PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES :

A provisio_n is recognized when an eriterprise has a present obligation as a resuit of past event; it is
probable that an outfiow of resources will be required to settie the obligation, in respect of which a reliable
estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on
best estimate required to setile the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.
EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE SHEET DATE :

Events occurring after the balance sheet date, which have a material impact on the financial affairs of the
company, are taken into cognizance. L

- )
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B. NOTESONACCOUNTS
1. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES:

YUKEN

Estimaﬁe_d _a,m_bqnt__‘of_ contracts re_ﬁ}_aining to be executed on capital account [net of advances
Rs.20,140,257/- (Rs.1,609,838/-).] and. not provided for is Rs.NIL (Rs.1,599,196 /-).

2. Corporate Guarantee given by the Company to Bankers for Yufiow Engineering Pvt Ltd towards Cash
Credit limit of Rs. 15,000,000!— » & Non fund based limit of Rs.2,500,000/- and for Coretec Engineering
india Pvt Ltd towards Term Loan of Rs. 15,000,000/- and Cash Credit Iimit of Rs, 2,500,000.

3. Foreign Currency ékposure :

a) Forward Exchange Contracts, which are not intended for trading or speculative purposes, but for
hedge purposes, to establish the amount of reporting currency reduired or available at the settie-

- ment date-of certain payabies and receivables, outstanding as at the year-end are gjiven below:

Noof " Nature of Amount Cross
- Contracts Hedge Currency (USD) Currency | - Amount {Rs)
Buy/Sell ‘
1 # Buy Uso - ‘Rupees -
(1} Buy _uUsD (3,470,000) Rupees | (156,392,900}
1 . Buy usb - Rupees. -
-) ) ¢ (172,618) Rupees {7,779,760)

b) Foreign Currency Exposure as at 3tst March,2011, that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument

or other wise:

Particulars Amount(RS) Amount
(Foreign Currency)

- Debtors against Export of Goods Rs.11,362,131 USD 256,258 -
{Rs.6,990,805) {USD 158,637)
Rs. 446,205 GBP 6,227
{Rs. 12,604) (GBP 188)
Rs.1,350,776 Euro 21,417
(Rs.1,270,105) (Euro 20,980)
Rs.365,559 YEN 867,200
(Rs.-) {YEN-)

Due to _

a) Secured loan Rs.15,748,011 EURO 249,691

, (Rs. -} (-)

b) Interest on Secured Loan Rs.21,803 EURO 345

(Rs.896,169) (USD 19,661)
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4. EMPLOYEEBENEFITS:

©) Creditors against Import of goods and services | Rs. 48,016,205 | USD 1,072,031
(inclusive for Capitat goods) . ' (Rs. 38,469,260) | (USD853,545)
' . Rs. 441,945 YEN 818,000
(Rs. 5,803,164) | (YEN11,933,300 )
Rs.606,800 EURO 9621 =
(Rs. 857,296) (EURQ14,161)

- The company has classifi ed vanous beneftts provided to employees as under:-

1 Defined Contribution Plans
a. Provident Fund
b. Superannuation Fund
C - State Defined Coniribution Plans ‘-

Employers Contribution to Employee’s State Insurance

' ‘ii Employers Contnbutcon to Employees Pension Scheme 1995,

- The. Comsgany has recogmzed the following amount in the Proflt and Loss Account

i, , AmountRs.
Partiéulars 31st March 2011} 3tst March 2010
Employe_;r_s" Contribution to Provident Fund* 5,313,131 4,488,880
Employers' Contribution to Superannuation Fund” 5,699,752 - 4,290,671
Employers' Contriootion to Employee's State Insurance” 786,031 .‘ 555,?_46.
Employers' Contribution to Employee's Pension Scheme 1995* | 2,628,323 | 2,140,157

* Included in Contribution to provndent and other funds (Refer Schedule 12)

I Defined Benefit Plan
a) Contribution to  Gratuity Fund :

'~ In accordance with Accounting Standard 15 actuarial valuation has been carried out at Projected Unit
Credit method in respect of the aforesaid defined benefit pian of Gratuity based on the following

assumptions.
Particulars 31st March 2011 | 31st March 2010
Discount Rate 8.10% p.a 8.15%p. a
: Expected Rate of Return on Pian ‘Assels 7.50% p.a 7.50% p.a
Salary Escalataon Rate o 5.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a
10.71 10.88

Expected Average remaining working fives of the employees
(Years) . e e

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority,
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.
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A) _Change n Present Value of Obligation:.

. AmountinRs..

~ 3tst March 2011 |-

‘31st-March 2010

Destription
‘oia“é‘n’ii’i&‘P;‘é%ént,fVa:ue-?6"1‘65].‘@?’.‘651 ' 12,011,567 11,761,680
.(J;.t{fl;éntls.g_:r;\?i_(.:e c;‘osil : _ ' 1,055,667 1,076,636
interest on Definefd Benefit leigatioff 1,014,311 912,143
" Benefits Paid ”"" 61,1920 ). (5:60807).
Net Actuari_al_ Losseé ./"(G.ains) Recognized in-Year -~ - = . 198,932 T -3,867,705
Past Service Cost 3,867,359 e sy
_L_o#ses / {Gains) on “Curtailments & Settlements” - :
él;sing Present Value of Obligations 17,636,644 12,011,567
B) Changein the Fair Value of Assets : . -+ AmountinRs.

31st March 2010

Description " 31st March 2011
op‘?',‘i_rgg_“!_?;;'rs__\i;id; ot Pian Assets SBisAT | HigseT
_Expected- Return bn Plan Assets 804,583 870,935
Actuarial Gains / (Losses) | (211,893) 29,462
Assets Distributed on Settiements - -
Contributions by émployer ' i 6,096,697 3,500,000
Assets Acquired due to _Acquisitid.r_i- | - :
Exchange Difference on Foreign Pla_ns - 7 -
Benefits Paid ' (511,192) - (5,606,597)
Closing Fa?r Valug_qf P!_.'_;i'_l Assets_ 16,027,666 9,849,471

C} Reconciliation of Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation and the Fair Value of pian assets :

in Balance Sheet

Amountin Rs.
Descripltion 31st March 2011 | 31st March 2010
Closing Present Value of Funded Obligations (17,636,644) (12,011,567)
Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets 116,027,666 9,849,471
Closing Value of Unfunded Obligations {1,608,978) {2,162,096) _
A Unrecognized Actuarial (0ains) / losses - -
L Unfunded Net Asset / {Liability) recognized (1,608,978) (2,162,096)
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D) Expensesrecognized in the Profit & Loss Account :

TAmountin RS

. Description . . : Lo - . -{31st March 2011 - | 31st March 2010
.Current Service Cost . .o o o 1,055,667 1,076,636 _
. Past Service Cost .. 3,867,359 .. ST
- Intérest Cost .. i 1,014,311 . 912,143 - .
- Expected Return on Plan Assets - (804,583} - (870,935)
- Actuarial Losges / (Gain) . . 410,825 . 3,838,243 -
-Losses / (Gains) on "Curtailments & Settlements R AR P e
Total Expenses recognized in the Profit & - 5,543,679 . - 4,956,087
Loss Account _ o _ _
E) _Major categories of Plan Assets as a percentage of total Plan Assets® = T
.. Description . . .31st March 2011 . | 3ist March 2010
Corporate Bonds - 38% 50%
Equity Shares of listed Companles 38% . 50%
- Insurer Managed Fund 24% - ~ 0%,
R Experience Adjustments |
bescrihﬁon . 31st Marph 31st March | 3tst March [31st March|31st March
- 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Define benefit obligation . | 17,234,829 15,108,152 | 11,761,680) 12,011,667 | 17,636,644
Plan Assets 12,376,464 12,968,271 11,055,671] 9,849,471 16,027,666
Surplur / (Deficit) (4,858,3655) |(2,139,881) | (706,009)](2,162.096) | (1,608,978)
Exp. qu. on plan liabilities 3,723,851 159,629 (1,229.969) 4,862,522 129,959
Exp. Adj. on plan assets {413,000} 140,974 | (1,248,332); 29,462 (211,893)

b) Leave Encashment salary

Assumptions at the Valuation Date: "

Description 31st March 2011 3tst March 2010
Discount Rate 8.15% p.a. 8.15% p.a.
Salary Escalation Rate 5.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a.

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation,
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Amountin Rs.

Description

31st March 2011

Jist March 2010

Charge in the Profit & Loss account 3,524,718 1,375,614
Amount paid during the year 1,971,827 1,841,312
Liability as at year end 12,118,454 10,565,564

Employee Benefits of Subsidiary companies :

The Consolidated financial statements include Rs.1,592,180 /-(Rs. 933,315/-) towards provision for gratuity
and Rs.306,041/-(Rs. 182,400/-) towards provision for leave salary provided by the subsidiary companies. The
subsidiary companies have not provided the disclosures enumerated in AS 15 - Employee Benefits, as the
same is not material.
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5, SEGMENTREPORT:

The company's predommant risks and retums are from the segment of Motion, Crmtrol & power transmassron
business; which constituted over 95% of the company's revenues for the reporting period. Thus the segment
revenue, segment result, total carrying amount of segment assets, total amount of segment liabilities, total
cost incurred to acquire eegment' assets, the total amount of expense incurred for depreciation and amortiza-
tion dunng the year are all as reflected in the financiai statements for the year ended March 31,2011 and as on
that date. Smce this being a slngle business and India the ‘only major geographical segment conslituting over
'95% of the companys revenues for the reporting period, the segment :nformatron as per Accounting Standard '
17, "Segment Repomng is not raqurred to be disclosed.

6. SAI.E OF MOBILE HYDRAULICS BUSlNESS

The Company has entered into'a shareholders agreement dated January 20 2010 with a party, for sale of its
mobile hydrauires business. As'a consrderatuon for this transfer the company received a total amount of Rs.
9,413 1300, out of which' Rs. 7,000,000 is towards: _transfer of Know-how, [P rights, customer/vendor contracts
etc. (goodwill) and balance. of Rs. 2,413,300 towards book value of fixed assets sold. The total purchase
consideration receivable was shown under "Sundry Debtors® in Schedule 6 and the amount receivable to-
wards goodwrll was shown under “Miscellaneous Income” in Schedule 9 of the ttnancnal statements in the
pre\nous year Thts year oompany has been allotted 941 ,330 shares of Rs.10 each at par.

The moblie Hydraullcs busmesedoes‘ not constltute a major Ime of business of the Company.
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YUKEN

8. LEASES:

a) The company has taken a rental premises on a operational lease. The lease rent paid has been
charged to the profit and loss account. The break up of total minimum lease rent due as on 31 .03.2011

is as follows _
Amountin Rs.
Particulars 31st March 2011 31st March 2010
Not later than one year | 1,132,344 990,135
Later than one year but not later than 5 years 6,149,121 5,473,065
Later than 5 years 4,925,263 3,835,503

b} The Company has entered into lease agreements for vehicles and office facilities which are
cancellable. The lease payments recognized in the statement of profit and loss account for the year

against these agreements is Rs.7,323,31 3/-(Rs.6,040,039/-} which has been
under Schedule-12. There are no contingent rents payable.

9. EARNING PER SHARE :

-

grouped under 'Rent'

AmountinRs.

After exceptional item 31st March 2011 | 31st March 2010
Profit after taxation N 108,324,677 82,290,792
Weighted number of Equity shares 3,000,000 3,000,000
Féce Value of Share Rs.10 Rs.10
Basic & Diluted Earnings Per (A/B) Rs. 36.11 Rs.27.43

10. DEFERRED TAX :

Tax provision has besn made i accordance with the requirements under the Accounting Standard

22 "Accounting for Taxes on Income” as detailed below: Amount in Rs.

Description Deferred tax |Current year |Deferred tax (asset}/
(asset)/liabili_ty charge / |liability as at 31.03.11
as at01.04.10 _(credit)
Difference between book & Tax | = 27.865.518 2,808,600 30,674,120 w
Depreciation : ' .
Provision for Doubtfu! debts and (1,499,540) 320,506 (1,179,034) H
advances '
Provision for Employee benefits (4,842,257) (539,527) (5,381,782)
and others : '
Miscellaneous Expenditure (2,979,673) 1,448,231 (1,531,442)
_(Voluntary Retirement Scheme)
Net 18,544,050 4,037,810 22,581,860
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( 11. INTEREST PAID COMPRISES OF :

YOKEN

Amount in Rs.

Description 31st March 2011 31st March 2010
On Fixed loans 17,952,459 20,186,980
On others 9,074,463 9,296,338
Total 27,026,922 29,483,318

Auditors remuneration

12. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES INCLUDES :

a. Remuneration to the auditors of the Company:

Amountin Rs.

Description 31stMarch 2011 ‘31stMarch 2010
Audit fees 650,000 500,000
Payments for other services 600,000 500,000

| Out of pocket Expenses inclusive of Service Tax 161,925 117,722
Total ¢ : 1,411,925 1,117,722

b. Remuneration to the auditors of the subsidiaries:

Amount in Rs.

Description 31stMarch 2011 31st March 2010
I | Auditfees 213,825 156,803
Payment for other services 16,000 43,675
Expenses 18,091 . -
Total 247,916 200,478

13. Disclosure of information refating to Subsidiary Companies (In pursuant to letter from Min-
istry of Corporate affairs-under sub-section 8 of section 212 of the Companies Act, 1956.

Amountinfs.

Description ~ Coretec Engineer- | yyflow Engineering Prism Hydrau-
ing (India) Pvt Ltd Pyt Ltd lics PvtLid
31/03/11 31/0310| 31/03/11 31/03110 31/03/11 31/03/10
Capital -6,196,000{ 6,196,000 | 10,000,000 10,000,000 375,000 375,000
Reserves and Surplus 38,28,620] 2,688,432 | 16,224,548| 13,644,815 | 12,036,691 '9,31 7,560
Total Assets 23,174,404 (11,072,171 | 41,895,719 34,890,577 | 15,515,499 12,616,577
Total Liabilities 23,174,404 111,072,171 | 41,895,719] 34,890,577 | 15,51 5,493 12,616,577
Details of Investment - - - - - -
Turnover 62,603,671 41,557,386 . [117,290,909] 82,480,026 | 42,841,657 | 26,068,980
Profit before taxation _1 ,662,189| 1,782,322 | 3,637,322] 6345245 | 3,528,990] 1,364,438
Provision for Taxation 522,000 513,000 | 1,057,589] 1,359,188 809,859 272,000
Profit after Tax 1,140,189 1,269,322 | 2,579,733{ 4,986,062 | 2,719,131| 1,092,438
Proposed Dividend
(Dividend paid) - - - - - -

L‘l-.-‘.T..----——----mn-—--m
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The above information is given pursuant to the requirement of granting exemption under sub section(8) of

Section 212 of the Companies Act, 1956. The information is prepared by the management and has not been
subjected to audit. o _

14. Figures relating to subsidiary-companies-havé been reclassified where necessary to bring in line with the
holding company's financial statements

15. Figures' relating to previous year has been reclassified wherever necessary to conform to current year classi-
ﬁcat_ipn. Figures in brackets relate to previous year.
SIGNATURES TOSCHEDULE1TO 13

For and on behalf of the Board

R Srinivasan V Balaji Bhat C.P.Rangachar '
Director Director Managing Director
# " HM Narasinga Rao

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bangalore
Date : 14th May, 2011
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FORM OFPROXY

YUKEN INDIA LIMITED ‘
P.B. No. 16, WHITEFIELD ROAD, WHITEFIELD, BANGALORE - 560 066

A L T S OO Of i, being a member / members of the

above named-Company, hereby appoint.........ccocecvveverreceevsnnnnn. Of i or failing him
........................................ Of i @8 MY/OUR PrOXY, to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the

35" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 2™ September 2011 at 10.00 A.M. and at any -
adjournment thereof, Signed this..........c.covvue... day of «oveeeierenn. 2011

Signature

Note : 1. The instrument of proxy shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less
than forty eight hours before the time for holding the meeting. -

2. Share holders intending to require inforntation about accounts to be explained in the
meeting aze requested to inform the company atleast 15 days in advance of the Annual
General Meeting.

3. Members are requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report to the Annual General
Meeting. Due to the prohibitive cost, no copies will be distributed at the Meeting.

YUKENINDIA LIMITED |
PB. No. 16, WHITEFIELD ROAD, WHITEFIELD, BANGALORE - 560 066

ATTENDANCE SLIP _
L.F. No. . No. of Shares held

‘Mr./Mrs.fMiss

| certify | am a registered Shareholder/proxy for the registered Sharsholder of the Company.

I hereby record my presence at the 35" Annual General Mesting of the Company held on 2" September
2011 at 10.00 A.M. at Woodlands Hotel(P) Ltd.,# 5 Raja Ram Mohan' Roy Road, Bangalore - 560 025.

Signature

Note : 1) Shareholders / Proxy holders are requested to bring the Attendance Slips when they come to
meeting and handover the same at the entrance after affixing their signature. Joint
shareholders may obtain additional Attendance Slips at the entrance.

2) Please Complete this Attendance Slip and hand it over at the entrance of the Meeting Hail.
3) No additional/duplicate Attendance Slip wilf be issued at the Meeting Rall.. )

* Strike out whichever is not applicable
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